#### GALVESTON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT



### REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION

#### RFQ #B191022

### FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES

**QUALIFICATION DUE DATE: 12/06/2018** 

2:00 P.M. CST

Rufus Crowder, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent
Galveston County
722 Moody (21st Street)
Fifth (5th) Floor
Galveston, Texas 77550
(409) 770-5372



## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATIN RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Sealed qualifications in sets of eight (8), one (1) unbound original, and seven (7) copies, will be received in the office of the Galveston County Purchasing Agent until 2:00 P.M. CST, Thursday, December 6, 2018, 2018, and opened immediately in that office in the presence of Galveston County Auditor and the Purchasing Agent. Sealed qualifications are to be delivered to Rufus G. Crowder, CPPO CPPB, Galveston County Purchasing Agent at the Galveston County Courthouse, 722 Moody, (21st Street), Floor 5, Purchasing, Galveston, Texas 77550, (409) 770-5372. The time stamp clock located in the Purchasing Agent's office shall serve as the official time keeping piece for this solicitation process. Any qualifications received after 2:00 P.M. CST on the specified date will be returned unopened.

#### Purpose:

Galveston County is issuing this Request for Qualifications \*RFQ) to procure professional residential elevation and mitigation reconstruction services in the Galveston County Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program, which covers both incorporated and unincorporated areas of Galveston County, Texas. Galveston County expects to award multiple contracts through this RFQ as the purpose of this RFQ is to engage a pre-qualified Contractor pool to utilize in implementing the Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) Grant Program. Contractors must be eligible to participate in contracts involving Federal funds, as the FMA Program is a FEMA funded grant program.

All qualifications must be marked on the outside of the envelope:

#### RFO #B191022

#### Flood Mitigation Assistance Home Elevation and Mitigation Reconstruction Services

Qualifiers name, return address, and the enclosed label should be prominently displayed on the proposal package for identification purposes.

Specifications can be obtained on application at the office of the Galveston County Purchasing Agent, located in the Galveston County Courthouse, 722 Moody, (21st Street), Floor 5, Purchasing, Galveston, Texas, 77550, or by visiting the Galveston County website @ <a href="http://www.galvestoncountytx.gov/pu/Pages/BidListings.aspx">http://www.galvestoncountytx.gov/pu/Pages/BidListings.aspx</a>.

This solicitation is for a professional services contract and shall be awarded on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications. Any customary fees regarding the resultant contract will be negotiated for a fair and reasonable price and may not exceed any maximum provided by law.

#### **Bonding Requirements:**

There are no bonding requirements for this solicitation.

The Galveston County Commissioners' Court reserves the right to waive any informality and to reject any and all qualifications, and to accept the qualification which, in its opinion, is most advantageous to Galveston County with total respect the governing laws.

Rufus G. Crowder, CPPO CPPB Purchasing Agent Galveston County

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS:**

1.	QUALIFICATIONS PACKAGE	1
2.	RESPONDENT'S RESPONSIBILITY	1
3.	TIME FOR RECEIVING QUALIFICATIONS	1
4.	COMPETITIVENESS, INTEGRITY, INQUIRIES AND QUESTIONS	2
5.	QUALIFICATIONS OPENING	3
6.	WITHDRAWAL OF QUALIFICATIONS/FIRM BID RULE	3
7.	COMMISSIONERS COURT	3
8.	REJECTION OF QUALIFICATIONS/DISQUALIFICATION	3
9.	RESTRICTIVE OR AMBIGUOUS SPECIFICATIONS	4
10.	SUBSTITUTES/DESCRIPTION OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT	4
11.	EXCEPTIONS TO QUALIFICATIONS	4
12.	PRICING	5
13.	PROCUREMENT CARD (P-CARD) PROGRAM	5
14.	PASS THROUGH COST ADJUSTMENTS	5
15.	MODIFICATION OF QUALIFICATIONS	6
16.	PRE-QUALIFICATION CONFERENCE	6
17.	SIGNATURE OF QUALIFICATIONS	6
18.	AWARD OF CONTRACT – EVALUATION CRITERIA AND FACTORS	6
19.	DISPUTE AFTER AWARD/PROTEST	7
20.	PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT (f/k/a Open Records Act)	8
21.	QUALIFIER'S E-MAIL ADDRESSES – CONSENT TO DISCLOSURE	8
22.	RESULTANT CONTRACT	8
23.	CONTRACT TERM	9
24.	TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT	9
25	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	10

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

26.	FORCE MAJEURE	10
27.	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES	10
28.	CONTRACTOR INVESTIGATION	10
29.	NO COMMITMENT BY COUNTY OF GALVESTON	11
30.	QUALIFICATION COSTS BORNE BY QUALIFIER	11
31.	BEST AND FINAL OFFERS	11
32.	SINGLE QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE	11
33.	CHANGES IN SPECIFICATIONS	11
34.	QUALIFICATION IDEAS AND CONCEPTS	12
35.	QUALIFICATION DISCLOSURES	12
36.	INDEMNIFICATION – ENGINEER OR ARCHITECT	12
37.	REQUIREMENT OF AND PROOF OF INSURANCE	13
38.	QUALIFICATIONS GUARANTEE	14
39.	PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS (if required)	14
40.	PATENT AND COPYRIGHT PROTECTION	14
41.	CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE REPORTING (FORM CIQ)	15
42.	DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PARTIES/FORM 1295	16
43.	CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, PROPOSED DEBARMENT, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS & REQUIREMENT TO REGISTER IN SAM	17
44.	SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY	18
45.	CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE	18
46.	MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS	18
47.	DELAYS	18
48.	ACCURACY OF DATA	18
49.	SUBCONTRACTING/ASSIGNMENT	19
50.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	19
51.	MONITORING PERFORMANCE	19
52.	SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS	19
53.	CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO GRANT FUNDING	19

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

54.	PROCUREMENT ETHICS	20
55.	NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	21
56.	CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING	22
57.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	22
58.	RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT	23
59.	TITLE VI ASSURANCES/TxDOT	24
60.	SECTION 231.006, FAMILY CODE/DELINQUENT CHILD SUPPORT	25
61.	ANTITRUST	25
62.	LABOR STANDARDS	
63.	PROCUREMENT LAWS	25
64.	ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION	30
65.	NOTICE	30
66.	USE OF DHS SEAL, LOGO, AND FLAGS PROHIBITED WITHOUT PRIOR APROVAL	31
67.	FEDERAL GOVERNMENT NOT A PARTY	31
68.	PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS	31
69.	LEAD AND ASBESTOS	32
70.	ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GOVERNMENT RECORD	32
71.	COMPLIANCE WITH GALVESTON COUNTY PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	32

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 1. OUALIFICATIONS PACKAGE

The Request for Qualifications, general and special provisions, drawings, specifications/line item details, contract documents, addenda (if any), and the Qualifications are all part of the Qualifications package. QUALIFICATIONS must be submitted in sets of eight (8), one (1) original and seven (7) copies on the forms provided by the County if County forms are provided, and shall include the Qualification sheets completed in their entirety and signed by an authorized representative by original signature. Failure to complete and sign the qualification sheets/contract page(s) may disqualify the qualifications from being considered by the Commissioners Court. Any individual signing on behalf of the Qualifier expressly affirms that he or she is duly authorized to tender this qualifications and to sign the qualifications under the terms and conditions in this request for qualifications on behalf of the Qualifier and to bind the Qualifier to the terms and conditions of this request for qualifications and the Qualifier's qualifications hereto. Qualifier further understands that Qualifiers' signing of the contract shall be of no effect unless the contract is subsequently awarded by the Commissioners Court and the contract is properly executed by the Commissioners Court. If this request for qualifications involves figure, then all figures must be written in ink or typed. Figures written in pencil or with erasures are not acceptable. However, mistakes may be crossed out, corrections inserted. and initialed in ink by the individual signing the qualifications on behalf of the Qualifier. If there are discrepancies between unit prices quoted and extensions, the unit price shall prevail. Each Qualifier is required to thoroughly review this entire request for qualifications package to familiarize themselves with the request for qualifications procedures, the plans and specifications for the requested work, as well as the terms and conditions of the contract the successful Qualifier will execute with the County. Qualifier is also sometimes referred to as "Respondent" herein.

#### 2. RESPONDENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

The Qualifier must affirmatively demonstrate its responsibility. The Qualifier must also meet the following minimum requirements:

- A. have adequate financial resources or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
- B. be able to comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and orders regarding this request for qualifications;
- C. have a satisfactory record of performance;
- D. have a satisfactory record of integrity and ethics; and
- E. be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

#### 3. TIME FOR RECEIVING QUALIFICATIONS

Qualifications (response to request for qualifications) may be submitted by mail or hand delivery and **must be submitted only to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent**. If by delivery, the Qualifier must deliver the Qualifications to the reception desk in the County Purchasing Agent's Office. The delivery and mailing instructions for the Galveston Count Purchasing Agent are the following:

Rufus Crowder, CPPO CPPB Galveston County Purchasing Agent 722 Moody, Fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) Floor Galveston, Texas 77550

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Qualifications (also sometimes referred to herein as "Response") will **not** be accepted by facsimile transmission or by electronic mail (email) unless superseded by instructions within the Special Provisions sections of this solicitation. Qualifications must be received by the County Purchasing Agent on or before the deadline for the opening of the qualifications. For clarity, mailing date/postmark is **not** sufficient – qualifications **must be received** by the County Purchasing Agent on or before the deadline. Late qualifications will not be accepted and will be returned to the Qualifier unopened. Qualifications received prior to the submission deadline will be maintained unopened until the specified time for opening.

The County Purchasing Agent will accept qualifications from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on each business day up to the submission deadline. Business days do not include Saturdays and Sundays, and do not include other days in which the County is closed for business in observance of holidays or for other reasons.

The time-stamp clock within the County Purchasing Agent's Office shall be the official time-clock for the purpose of this solicitation and thus shall be the determinant of whether the qualifications was timely received.

The Qualifier should prominently identify the procurement number and name on the outside of the envelope/mailing package. A label shall be provided for this purpose and usage of the label is preferred. If the qualifier fails to identify the request for qualifications number and name on the outside of the envelope as required, the Purchasing Agent will open the envelope for the sole purpose of identifying the solicitation number for which the submission was made. The envelope will then be resealed. No liability will attach to a County office or employee for the premature opening of a qualifications.

If a qualifications is not submitted, return this Request for Qualification and state reason (s), otherwise your name may be removed from the Purchasing Agent's mailing list.

#### 4. COMPETITIVENESS, INTEGRITY, INQUIRIES AND QUESTIONS

To prevent biased evaluations and to preserve the competitiveness and integrity of the procurement process, qualifiers are to direct all communications regarding this request for qualifications only to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent, unless otherwise specifically noted.

**Do not contact the requesting department.** Attempts by offering firms to circumvent this requirement will be viewed negatively and may result in rejection of the qualifications of the firm found to be in non-compliance.

#### All questions regarding this Request for Qualifications must be submitted in writing to:

Rufus Crowder, CPPO CPPB, Purchasing Agent
722 Moody
Fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) Floor
Galveston, Texas 77550
Fax: (409) 621-7997

E-mail: purchasing.bids@co.galveston.tx.us

All questions received and the responses thereto will be mailed, emailed, or faxed to all prospective qualifiers by addendum. No inquiries except clarification of instructions will be addressed by telephone.

RFQ #B191022 OPEN: 12/06/2018

TIME: 2:00 P.M.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –** REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS - ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Qualifier is advised to carefully review this Request for Qualifications - it provides specific information necessary to aid participating firms in formulating a thorough response. Qualifier's failure to examine all documents shall not entitle the qualifier to any relief from the conditions imposing in the Request for Qualifications and the resultant contract.

An authorized person from the qualifier must sign the qualifications. This signatory must be a person from the submitting firm who is duly authorized to tender and sign the qualifications on behalf of the qualifier and to bind the qualifier to the terms and conditions of this Request for Qualifications, the qualifications, and all other terms and conditions of the contract. By this signature, the qualifier further acknowledges that the qualifier has read the Request for Qualifications, all addenda hereto (if any), and the Qualifier's qualifications documents thoroughly before submitting a qualifications and will fulfill the obligations in accordance to the terms, conditions, and specifications detailed herein.

#### 5. QUALIFICATIONS OPENING

The Purchasing Agent shall open the qualifications on the date and time specified herein. Only the names of the Qualifiers will be read at the opening. Qualifications shall be opened in a manner that avoids disclosure of the contents to competing offerors and that keeps the qualifications secret during negotiations. The Purchasing Agent will examine qualifications promptly and thoroughly. Upon opening, no qualifications may be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendars days after the qualifications opening date.

#### WITHDRAWAL OF QUALIFICATIONS/FIRM BID RULE

Qualifiers may request withdrawal of their sealed qualifications prior to the scheduled qualifications opening time provided the request for withdrawal is submitted to the Purchasing Agent in writing. No qualifications may be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after opening of the qualifications.

#### 7. COMMISSIONERS COURT

No contract is binding on the County until it is properly placed on the Commissioners Court agenda, approved in open Court, authorized to be executed by the County Judge, and fully executed by both parties.

Department heads and elected officials are not authorized to enter into any type of agreement or contract on behalf of the County. Only the Commissioners Court acting as a body may enter into a contract on behalf of and contractually bind the County. Additionally, department heads and elected officials are not authorized to agree to any type of supplemental agreements or contracts for goods or services. Supplemental agreements are subject to review by the County Legal Department prior to being accepted and signed by the County's authorized representative.

#### REJECTION OF QUALIFICATIONS/DISQUALIFICATION

Galveston County, acting through its Commissioners Court, reserves the right to:

- reject any and all qualifications in whole or in part received by reason of this request for qualifications;
- waive any informality in the qualifications received:

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

- disregard the qualifications of any qualifier determined to be not responsible;
- disregard the qualifications of any qualifier determined to have not submitted its qualifications timely; and/or
- discontinue its efforts for any reason under this request for qualifications package at any time prior to actual execution of contract by the County.

Qualifiers may be disqualified and rejection of qualifications may be recommended to the Commissioners Court for any of (but not limited to) the following causes:

- A. Failure to use the qualifications forms furnished by the County, if applicable:
- B. Lack of signature by an authorized representative of qualifier;
- C. Failure to properly complete the qualifications;
- D. Engaging in communications regarding this procurement during the pendency of this procurement with County officials and/or personnel who are not within the Purchasing Agent's Office;
- E. Failure to meet the mandatory requirements of this request for qualifications; and/or
- F. Evidence of collusion among qualifiers.

#### 9. RESTRICTIVE OR AMBIGUOUS SPECIFICATIONS

It is the responsibility of the prospective qualifier to review the entire request for qualifications packet and to notify the Purchasing Agent if the specifications are formulated in a manner that would restrict competition or appear ambiguous. Any protest or question(s) regarding the specifications or qualifications procedures must be received in the Purchasing Agent's Office not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the time set for qualifications opening. Qualifiers are to submit their qualifications as specified herein or propose an approved equal.

#### 10. SUBSTITUTES/DESCRIPTION OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

Any brand name or manufacturer reference used herein is intended to be descriptive and not restrictive, unless otherwise noted, and is used to indicate the type and quality of material. The term "or equal" if used, identifies commercially produced items that have the essential performance and salient characteristics of the brand name stated in the item description. All supplies, material, or equipment shall be new and of the most suitable grade for the purpose intended. For clarification, "new" includes products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items and additionally see Section 63 of these General Provisions on contracts involving federal funds. It is not the County's intent to discriminate against any materials or equipment of equal merit to those specified. However, if qualifier desires to use any substitutions, prior written approval must be obtained from the Purchasing Agent and sufficiently in advance such that an addendum may be issued. All material supplied must be one hundred percent (100%) asbestos free. Qualifier, by submission of its qualifications, certifies that if awarded any portion of this procurement, the qualifier will supply only material and equipment that is 100% asbestos free.

#### 11. EXCEPTIONS TO QUALIFICATIONS

The qualifier will list on a separate sheet of paper any exceptions to the conditions of this request for qualifications. This sheet will be labeled, "Exceptions to Qualifications Conditions", and will be attached to the qualifications. If no exceptions are stated, it will be understood that all general and special conditions will be complied with, without exception.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

The qualifier must specify in its qualifications any alternatives it wishes to propose for consideration by the County. Each alternative should be sufficiently described and labeled within the qualifications and should indicate its possible or actual advantage to the program being offered.

The County reserves the right to offer these alternatives to other qualifiers.

#### 12. PRICING

Pricing not requested in request for qualifications.

#### 13. PROCUREMENT CARD (P-CARD) PROGRAM

The County of Galveston participates in a Procurement Card (P-Card) program that allows payments made to a vendor by credit card. This method typically results in substantially faster bill payments, sometimes within three (3) to five (5) days of the actual transaction date. All transaction fees from the card provider are to be paid by the successful contractor. If your company will accept payment via credit card (Visa, MasterCard), please notate this in your Qualifications submittal.

#### 14. PASS THROUGH COST ADJUSTMENTS

Except in instances of extreme extenuating circumstances, Contractor prices shall remain firm throughout the contract period and any renewals. Examples of extreme extenuating circumstances include such situations as a nationwide rail strike, oil shortage or oil embargo.

In extreme extenuating circumstances, Contractors may be allowed to temporarily "pass through" additional costs they are forced to incur through no fault of their own. A request for a pass through cost increase will not be considered unless a Contractor's cost for the Contractor's product exceeds 10% over the original cost for the product. Also, the increase in cost must be nationwide and consistent for a minimum period of sixty (60) calendar days. Costs that historically are anticipated to rise over a period of time (for example only, such as wages or insurance costs) do not qualify for pass through. If a Contractor thinks he will be asking for a pass through cost adjustment during the term of the contract, then the original cost of the product to Contractor must be stated in Contractor's ensuing negotiations after qualifying.

A request for a pass through cost does not guarantee that one will be granted. Contractors must submit such information on each request as required by the County Purchasing Agent. The County Purchasing Agent will review each request on a case-by-case basis and if valid submit the request to the Commissioners Court for authorization and determination of the appropriateness of each request as well as amount and duration of increase. Contractors will not be permitted any additional compensation for mark-ups or profits based on the increase in price. Rather, such additional compensation will be limited to the actual increase in original cost to the Contractor as such increase is reflected by the original cost stated in the bid. But in no event will the amount of additional compensation exceed 25% increase in Contractor's original cost for the product as such cost is reflected in Contractor's negotiated costs or the duration exceed a period of sixty (60) calendar days. In addition should the cost, during the period of the pass through, return to normal or decrease to below pre pass through prices, appropriate downward adjustments shall be made. No more than one pass through adjustment will be permitted per year.

### GENERAL PROVISIONS –

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 15. MODIFICATION OF QUALIFICATIONS

A qualifier may modify its' qualifications by letter at any time prior to the submission deadline for receipt of qualifications. Modification requests must be received by the Purchasing Agent prior to the submission deadline. Modifications made before opening time must be initialed by qualifier guaranteeing authenticity. Qualifications may not be amended or altered after the official opening with the single exception that any product literature and/or supporting data required by the actual specifications, if any, will be accepted at any time prior to the Commissioners Court considering of same.

#### 16. PRE-QUALIFICATION CONFERENCE

A pre-qualification conference for the purpose of discussing contract requirements and answering questions of prospective qualifiers may be conducted in this procurement. A pre-qualification conference may be mandatory or voluntary. If the pre-qualification conference is mandatory, then the County is authorized to condition acceptance of a qualifications on compliance with attendance. The Special Provisions of this procurement shall specify if a pre-qualification conference is to be held and shall specify whether the conference is mandatory or voluntary. Regardless of whether the conference is mandatory or voluntary, only a principal, officer, or employee of the qualifier may represent the qualifier at the pre-qualification conference and no person may represent more than one qualifier at the conference.

#### 17. SIGNATURE OF QUALIFICATIONS

Each qualifications shall give the complete name of the qualifier and the mailing address of the qualifier and be signed by an authorized representative by original signature with the authorized representative's name and legal title typed below the signature line. Each qualifications shall include the qualifier's Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN). Failure to sign the Contract page(s) and qualifications response sheets may disqualify the qualifications from being considered by the County. The person signing on behalf of the qualifier expressly affirms that the person is duly authorized to tender the qualifications on behalf of the qualifier and to sign the qualifications sheets and contract under the terms and conditions of this Request for Qualifications and to bind the qualifier hereto and further understands that the signing of the contract shall be of no effect until it is properly placed on the Commissioners Court agenda, approved in open Court, authorized to be executed on behalf of the County, and fully executed by both parties.

#### 18. AWARD OF CONTRACT - EVALUATION CRITERIA AND FACTORS

The award will be made to the responsible Qualifier who is determined to be the most qualified, demonstrating the best ability to fulfill the requirements set forth in this Request for Qualification.

Each Qualifier, by submitting a Qualification, agrees that if their Qualification is accepted by the Commissioners' Court, such Qualifier will furnish all items and services requested and agreed in a resultant contract.

The professional service shall commence work only after the transmittal of a fully executed contract and after receiving written notification to proceed from the County Purchasing Agent. The contractor will perform all services indicated in compliance with any resultant contract.

Neither department heads nor elected officials are authorized to sign any binding contracts or agreements prior to being properly placed on the Commissioners' Court agenda and approved in open court. Department heads and other

### GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT

### FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

elected officials are not authorized to enter into any type of agreement or contract on behalf of Galveston County. Only the Commissioners Court, acting as a body, may enter into a contract on behalf of the County. Additionally, department heads and other elected officials are not authorized to agree to any type of supplemental agreements or contracts for goods or services. Supplemental agreements are subject to review by the County Legal Department prior to being signed by the County's authorized representatives.

The County of Galveston reserves the right to accept qualifications on individual items listed, or group items, or on the qualification as a whole; to reject any and all qualifications; to waive any informality in the qualifications; to disregard qualifications that are not submitted timely; to disregard the qualifications of qualifiers determined to be not responsible; and to accept the qualification that appears to be in the best interest of the County. The selection process may, however, include a request for additional information or an oral presentation to support the written qualifications.

In determining and evaluating the best qualification, factors will include the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications to perform this service. The Commissioners Court shall be the sole judge in the determination of these matters.

The County reserves the right to reject any or all qualifications in whole or in part received by reason of this Request for Qualifications and may discontinue its efforts under this Request for Qualifications for any reason or no reason or solely for the County's convenience at any time prior to actual execution of the contract by the County.

### A Qualifier whose Qualification does not meet the mandatory requirements set forth in this request for qualifications will be considered non-compliant.

The request for qualifications which appears in the newspaper, or other authorized advertising mediums, these general provisions, the specifications which follow, the qualifications sheets, and any addenda issued are all considered part of the request for qualifications.

Each Qualifier, by submitting its' qualifications, agrees that if its qualifications is accepted by the Commissioners Court, such Qualifier will furnish all items and services upon the terms and conditions in this request for qualifications and the resultant contract.

Notice of contract award is anticipated to be made within ninety (90) days of opening of qualifications to the most qualified respondent and whose qualifications complies with all the requirements in the request for qualifications.

Contractor shall submit to the County, for approval, within ten (10) days from notice of contract award, all Certificates of Insurance evidencing the required coverage as described under Section 37, Requirement of and Proof of Insurance, or if different, then as described within the Special Provisions or resultant contract.

The contractor shall not commence work under these terms and conditions of the contract until all applicable Purchase Orders, Certificates of Insurance, Performance and Payment Bonds, and Irrevocable Letters of Credit (if required) have been approved by the County of Galveston and the Contractor has received notice to proceed in writing and an executed copy of the contract from the County Purchasing Agent.

#### 19. DISPUTE AFTER AWARD/PROTEST

Any actual or prospective Qualifier who is allegedly aggrieved in connection with this procurement or award of a contract resulting therefrom may protest. The protest shall be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Agent within

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

seven (7) calendar days after such aggrieved person knows of or should have known of the facts giving rise thereto. If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the Purchasing Agent will promptly issue a decision in writing to the protestant. If the protestant wishes to appeal the decision rendered by the Purchasing Agent, such appeal must be made to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The decision of the Commissioners Court will be final. The Commissioners Court need not consider protests unless this procedure is followed.

#### 20. PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT (f/k/a Open Records Act)

The Qualifier acknowledges that the County is a government body for purposes of the Public Information Act, codified as Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code, and as such is required to release information in accordance with the provisions of the Public Information Act.

If qualifier considers any of its submitted information to be proprietary in nature, trade secret, or otherwise confidential, then it must clearly and conspicuously mark such information as proprietary, trade, secret, or confidential. By the submission of its qualifications, the qualifier expressly affirms that it has clearly and conspicuously marked any information within its submission that qualifier considers confidential, proprietary, and/or trade secret.

In the event the County receives a request for information under the Public Information Act seeking information that the qualifier has marked as confidential, proprietary, and /or trade secret, then the County agrees that it shall provide notice to the qualifier of the request for information and the request for decision process under the Public Information Act. Thus, the County will submit the initial correspondence to the Texas Attorney General – however, the burden is and shall be on the qualifier to submit correspondence to the Attorney General if the qualifier wishes its information to be withheld. Qualifier is deemed to have knowledge of the Public Information Act. By the submission of its qualifications, qualifier expressly acknowledges that the burden to withhold its' information from public disclosure lays with the qualifier; thus, qualifier further acknowledges and agrees that it shall submit comments to the Texas Attorney General in the request for decision process if qualifier wishes to have its' information withheld from public disclosure.

#### 21. QUALIFIER'S E-MAIL ADDRESSES - CONSENT TO DISCLOSURE

Notwithstanding the foregoing Section 20, qualifier acknowledges and agrees that the confidentiality of any and all email addresses qualifier uses or discloses in communicating with the County are **open** to the public in accordance with Section 552.137 of the Government Code and qualifier consents to the release of its email addresses.

#### 22. RESULTANT CONTRACT

The County will enter into negotiations with the Qualifier selected as most qualified by Commissioners Court. Following successful negotiations of contract terms, including pricing, Qualifier shall correctly and fully execute the resultant contract. After having done so, the contract shall be set for consideration at a properly noticed meeting of Commissioners Court. If Commissioners Court authorized execution of the contract on behalf of the County, the resultant contract shall take effect upon execution of the contract by the authorized representative of Commissioners Court. Contract documents shall consist of the resultant contract, the general and special provisions, the drawings, the response submitted by the Qualifier to the RFQ (also referred to herein as qualifications), addenda issued (if any), and any change orders issued and approved during the work.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Qualifier should include in its RFQ response proposed contract terms or a sample of proposed contract terms or a sample of proposed material terms and conditions.

In the event that the County and Qualifier are unable to negotiate mutually agreeable contract terms, Commissioners Court may authorize the County to enter into negotiations with the next most qualified qualifier or may cancel the RFQ in its entirety.

#### 23. CONTRACT TERM

The term of the resultant contract will begin on the date of full execution or the execution by the Commissioners Court, whichever is later, and will terminate on the date specified in the resultant contract unless terminated earlier as herein set forth.

#### 24. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

Failure of either party in the performance of any of the provisions of this contract shall constitute a breach of contract, in which case either party may require corrective action within ten (10) business days from date of receipt of written notice citing the exact nature of such breach. Failure of the party being notified to take corrective action within the prescribed ten (10) business days, or failure to provide written reply of why no breach has occurred, shall constitute a Default of Contract.

All notices relating to default by qualifier of the provisions of the contract shall be issued by the County through its Legal Department, and all replies shall be made in writing to the County Legal Department. Notices issued by or issued to anyone other than the County Legal Department shall be null and void and shall be considered as not having been issued or received.

Galveston County reserves the right to enforce the performance of this contract in any manner prescribed by law in the event of breach or default of this contract, and may contract with another party, with or without solicitation of qualifications or further negotiations. At a minimum, qualifier shall be required to pay any difference in service or materials, should it become necessary to contract with another source, plus reasonable administrative costs and attorney fees.

In the event of Termination for Default, Galveston County, its agents or representatives shall not be liable for loss of any profits anticipated to be made by qualifier.

In addition to the remedies stated herein, the County has the right to pursue other remedies permitted by law or in equity.

No waiver by either party of any event of default under this agreement shall operate as a waiver of any subsequent default under the terms of this agreement.

County reserves the right to terminate this contract immediately in the event contractor:

- A. Fails to meet delivery or completion schedules; and/or
- B. Fails to otherwise perform in accordance with the accepted qualifications and the contract.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 25. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

County may terminate this contract upon at least thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice for its convenience or for any reason deemed by the County to serve the public interest. As well, County may terminate this contract upon thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice for any reason resulting from any governmental law, order, ordinance, regulation, or court order. In no event shall County be liable for loss of any profits anticipated to be made hereunder by qualifier should this contract be terminated early.

#### 26. FORCE MAJEURE

If by reason of Force Majeure either Party shall be rendered unable, wholly or in part, to carry out its responsibilities under this contract by any occurrence by reason of Force Majeure, then the Party unable to carry out its responsibility shall give the other Party notice and full particulars of such Force Majeure in writing within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the event, and such notice shall suspend the Party's responsibility for the continuance of the Force Majeure claimed, but for no longer period.

Force Majeure means acts of God, floods, hurricanes, tropical storms, tornadoes, earthquakes, or other natural disasters, acts of a public enemy, acts of terrorism, sovereign conduct, riots, civil commotion, strikes or lockouts, and other causes that are not occasioned by either Party's conduct which by the exercise of due diligence the Party is unable to overcome and which substantially interferes with operations.

#### 27. ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

Any reference to quantities shown in the request for qualifications is an estimate only. Since the exact quantities cannot be predetermined, the County reserves the right to adjust quantities as deemed necessary to meet its requirements.

#### 28. CONTRACTOR INVESTIGATION

Before submitting a statement of qualifications, each qualifier shall make all investigations and examinations necessary to ascertain all site conditions and requirements affecting the full performance of the contract and to verify any representations made by the County upon which the contractor will rely. Qualifier shall exercise due diligence and is further charged with knowledge of the local, State, and Federal laws, rules, and regulations applicable to this contract. If the qualifier receives an award as a result of its submission in this procurement, the qualifier's failure to have made such investigations and examinations will in no way relieve the qualifier from its obligation to comply in every detail with all provisions and requirements of the contract, nor will a plea of ignorance of such conditions and requirements be accepted as a basis for any claim whatsoever by the contractor for additional compensation and/or for excused nonperformance.

RFQ #B191022 OPEN: 12/06/2018

TIME: 2:00 P.M.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –**

#### REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS - ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 29. NO COMMITMENT BY COUNTY OF GALVESTON

This request for qualifications does not commit the County of Galveston to award any costs or pay any costs, or to award any contract, or to pay any costs associated with or incurred in the preparation of a qualifications in response to this request for qualifications and does not commit the County of Galveston to procure or contract for services or supplies.

#### 30. QUALIFICATION COSTS BORNE BY QUALIFIER

Galveston County shall not be liable for any costs incurred by qualifier in preparation, production, or submission of a qualification and shall not be liable for any work performed by qualifier prior to issuance of fully executed contract and properly issued notice to proceed. Galveston County shall not be liable for any costs incurred by qualifier by reason of attending a pre-qualifications conference. Galveston County shall not be liable for any costs incurred by qualifier during negotiations, including but not limited to those incurred by reason of the County invoking use of best and final offers.

#### 31. BEST AND FINAL OFFERS

Not applicable as pricing is not requested in a request for qualifications.

#### 32. SINGLE QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE

Not applicable as a detailed cost proposal is not requested in a request for qualifications.

#### 33. CHANGES IN SPECIFICATIONS

If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this request for qualifications, a written notice of such revision will be provided to all qualifiers in the form of addenda. The County is not bound by any oral representations, clarifications, or changes made in the written specifications by the County's employees or officials, unless such clarification or change is provided to qualifiers in a written addendum from the Purchasing Agent. Qualifiers are advised to inquire prior to the submission deadline as to whether any addenda to this request for qualifications have been issued, as the successful qualifier will be required to abide by such addenda.

The County of Galveston reserves the right to revise or amend the specifications up to the time set for opening of qualifications. Such revisions and amendments, if any, shall be announced by form of addenda. Copies of such addenda (or addendum in the event only one addendum is issued in the procurement) shall be furnished to all prospective contractors. Prospective contractors are defined as those contractors listed on the County's request for qualifications list for this material/service or those who have obtained documents from the Purchasing Agent's Office subsequent to the advertisement. If revisions and amendments require changes in quantities proposed, the date set for opening of qualifications may be postponed by such number of days as in the opinion of the County shall enable prospective contractors to revise their qualifications. In any case, the qualifications opening shall be at least seven (7) business days after the last revising or amendment addendum and the addendum shall include an announcement of the new date, if applicable, for the opening of qualifications.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –**

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 34. QUALIFICATION IDEAS AND CONCEPTS

The County reserves to itself the right to adopt or use for its benefit, any concept, plan, or idea contained in any qualification.

#### 35. QUALIFICATION DISCLOSURES

While this procurement is pending, the names of those who submitted qualifications will not be made public unless in conformity with the County Purchasing Act. Likewise, no staffing, or other contents of the qualifications information will be released unless in conformity with the County Purchasing Act. Qualifiers are requested to withhold all inquiries regarding their qualifications or other submissions until after an award is made. No communication is to be had with any County employee or official, other than the County Purchasing Agent, regarding whether a qualifications was received - violations of this provision may result in the rejection of a qualifications.

#### 36. INDEMNIFICATION - ENGINEER OR ARCHITECT

- a. The contractor, a licensed engineer or registered architect performing services within the scope of such practice, agrees to assume all risks and responsibility for, and agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless, the County of Galveston, its elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents from and against all liability, claims, demands, suits, actions, recoveries, judgments, and costs and expenses including reasonable attorney's fees for the defense thereof, to the extent such is caused by or results from an act of negligence committed by the contractor or the contractor's employee or agent or subconsultant, intentional tort committed by the contractor or the contractor's employee or agent or subconsultant, intellectual property infringement committed by the contractor or the contractor or subconsultant, or failure to pay a subcontractor or supplier committed by the contractor or the contractor's agent or employee or subconsultant.
- b. The foregoing shall not require the contractor to defend a party, including a third party, against a claim based wholly or partly on the negligence of, fault of, or breach of contract by Galveston County, its agents, employees, or other entities (excluding the contractor, its agents, employees, or subconsultants) over which Galveston County exercises control. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contractor must provide for the reimbursement of Galveston County's reasonable attorney's fees in proportion to the contractor's liability.
- c. Additionally, notwithstanding the foregoing subsection (b), Galveston County shall require that the engineer or architect name Galveston County as an additional insured under the engineer's or architect's general liability insurance policy and provide any defense provided by the policy.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 37. REQUIREMENT OF AND PROOF OF INSURANCE

The successful qualifier shall furnish evidence of insurance to the County Purchasing Agent and shall maintain such insurance as required hereunder or as may be required in the Special Provisions or resultant contract, if different. Contractor shall obtain and thereafter continuously maintain in full force and effect, commercial general liability insurance, including but not limited to bodily injury, property damage, and contractual liability, with combined single limits as listed below or as may be required by State or Federal law, whichever is greater.

- A. For damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of one person in any one accident : ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 (\$100,000.00) DOLLARS.
- B. For damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of two or more persons in any one accident: THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 (\$300,000.00) DOLLARS.
- C. For any injury to or destruction of property in any one accident:
  ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 (\$100,000,000) DOLLARS.

Insurance shall be placed with insurers having an A.M. Best's rating of no less than A. Such insurance must be issued by a casualty company authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and in standard form approved by the Board of Insurance Commissioners of the State of Texas, with coverage provisions insuring the public from loss or damage that may arise to any person or property by reason of services rendered by Contractor.

Galveston County shall be listed as the additional insured on policy certificates and shall be provided with no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior notice of any changes to the policy during the contractual period.

On contracts involving engineers or architects, Contractor shall obtain and thereafter continuously maintain in full force and effect, commercial general liability insurance, including coverages for bodily injury, property damage, and contractual liability with combined single limits of, at minimum, \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 in the aggregate or as may be required by State or Federal law, whichever is greater. Galveston County shall be listed as an additional insured on such insurance policy and certificates evidencing such shall be provided to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent; such general liability insurance policy shall provide any defense to Galveston County, its appointed and elected officials, employees, and agents, that is provided by such policy.

Certificates of Insurance, fully executed by a licensed representative of the insurance company written or countersigned by an authorized Texas state agency, shall be filed with the County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) business days of issuance of notification from the County Purchasing Agent to qualifier that the contract is being activated as written proof of such insurance and further provided that qualifier shall not commence work under this contract until it has obtained all insurance required herein, provided written proof as required herein, and received written notice to proceed issued from the County Purchasing Agent.

Proof of renewal/replacement coverage shall be provided prior to the expiration, termination, or cancellation date of any policy and Galveston County shall be named as an additional insured on any such renewal/replacement coverage and a certificate of insurance showing such shall be provided to the Purchasing Agent. Said insurance shall not be cancelled, permitted to expire, or changed without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County.

Insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during the life of this contract and shall be issued on an occurrence basis. Contractor shall require that any and all subcontractors that are not protected under the Contractor's own insurance policies take and maintain insurance of the same nature and in the same amounts as required of Contractor and provide written proof of such insurance to Contractor. Proof of renewed/replacement coverage shall be provided prior to the expiration, termination, or cancellation date of any policy. Contractor shall not

## GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION

### RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

allow any subcontractor to commence work on the subcontract until such insurance required for the subcontractor has been obtained and approved.

Workers' Compensation Insurance: Successful qualifier shall carry in full force Workers' Compensation Insurance Policy(ies), if there is more than one employee, for all its' employees, including but not limited to full time, part time, and emergency employees employed by the successful qualifier. Current insurance certificates certifying that such policies as specified above are in full force and effect shall be furnished by successful qualifier to the County.

Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a Best rating of no less than A. The qualifier shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance and original endorsements affecting coverage required by these insurance clauses within ten (10) business days of receiving notification from the County Purchasing Agent that the contract is being activated. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The qualifier shall be required to submit annual renewals for the term of this contract prior to expiration of any policy.

In addition to the remedies stated herein, the County has the right to pursue other remedies permitted by law or in equity.

The County agrees to provide qualifier with reasonable and timely notice of any claim, demand, or cause of action made or brought against the County arising out of or related to utilization of the property. Qualifier shall have the right to defend any such claim, demand, or cause of action at its sole cost and expense and within its sole and exclusive discretion. The County agrees not to compromise or settle any claim or cause of action arising out of or related to the utilization of the property without the prior written consent of the qualifier.

In no event shall the County be liable for any damage to or destruction of any property belonging to the qualifier.

**Subrogation Waiver**. Qualifier and qualifier's insurance carrier waive any and all rights to subrogation against Galveston County in regard to any suit or claim arising out of personal injury or property damage resulting from qualifier's performance under this agreement.

#### 38. QUALIFICATIONS GUARANTEE

Not Applicable.

#### 39. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS (if required)

Successful qualifier, before beginning work, shall execute a performance bond and a payment bond as required under the Special Provisions or the resultant contract if such is required.

#### 40. PATENT AND COPYRIGHT PROTECTION

The qualifier agrees at its sole expense to protect the County from claims involving infringement of patents, copyright, trademark, trade secret, or other intellectual property rights. Qualifier shall indemnify and save harmless the County of Galveston, its officers, employees, and agents, from liability of any nature and kind whatsoever, including without limitation cost and expenses, for or on account of any copyrighted, trademarked, trade secret, patented or un-patented invention, process, or article manufactured or used in the performance of the contract, or other intellectual property rights, including its use by the County. Qualifier also agrees that if qualifier is awarded this contract, that no work performed hereunder shall be subject to patent, copyright, or other intellectual property by qualifier.

RFQ #B191022 OPEN: 12/06/2018

TIME: 2:00 P.M.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –** REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS - ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 41. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE REPORTING (FORM CIO)

Qualifier may be required under Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code to complete and file a conflict of interest questionnaire (CIQ Form). The CIQ Form pertains to business relationship, gift giving and family relationship reporting. If qualifier is required to file a CIQ Form, then the completed CIQ Form must be filed with the County Clerk of Galveston County, Texas.

Business relationship. If qualifier has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of Galveston County or with a family member of a local government officer of Galveston County that results in the officer or family member of the officer receiving taxable income that exceeds \$2,500.00 during the preceding 12month period, then qualifier MUST complete a CIQ Form and file the original of the CIQ Form with the County Clerk of Galveston County.

Gift-giving. If qualifier has given a local government officer of Galveston County or a family member of a local government officer of Galveston County one or more gifts with an aggregate value of more than one-hundred dollars (\$100.00) during the preceding 12-months, then qualifier MUST complete a CIQ Form and file the original of the CIQ Form with the County Clerk of Galveston County.

Family member. For purposes of the business relationship and gift giving reporting requirements, a "family member" means a person related to another person with the first degree of consanguinity or affinity, as described by Subchapter B, Chapter 573, Texas Government Code. Examples of persons within the first degree by consanguinity or affinity include a son, daughter, father, mother, spouse, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, stepson, stepdaughter, stepmother, and stepfather.

Family relationship. If qualifier has a "family relationship" with a local government officer of Galveston County then qualifier MUST complete a CIQ Form and file the original of the CIQ Form with the County Clerk of Galveston County, regardless of whether qualifier has a business relationship or has given gifts to the local government officer or a family member of the local government officer. For this purpose, "family relationship" means qualifier is related within the third degree by consanguinity or the second degree by affinity, as those terms are defined under Chapter 573 of the Texas Government Code, to a local government officer of Galveston County. Examples of such relationships include a son, daughter, mother, father, brother, sister, grandchild, great-grandchild, grandparent, greatgrandparent, niece, nephew, uncle, aunt, spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, spouse's grandchild, spouse's grandparent, grandparent's spouse, grandchild's spouse, stepson, stepdaughter, stepmother, and stepfather.

Qualifier must file its original CIQ Form with the Galveston County Clerk. The Galveston County Clerk has offices at the following locations:

#### **Galveston County Clerk**

Galveston County Justice Center, Suite 2001 600 59th Street Galveston, Texas 77551

#### **Galveston County Clerk**

North County Annex, 1st Floor 174 Calder Road League City, Texas 77573

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Again, if qualifier is required to file a CIQ Form, the original completed form is filed with the Galveston County Clerk (not the Purchasing Agent).

For qualifier's convenience, a blank CIQ Form is enclosed with this request for qualifications package. Blank CIQ Form(s) may also be obtained by visiting the Purchasing Agent's website – this website is linked from the Galveston County homepage, at <a href="http://www.galvestoncountytx.gov">http://www.galvestoncountytx.gov</a>.

Chapter 176 specifies deadlines for the filing of CIQ Forms (both initial filings and updated filings).

It is qualifier's sole responsibility to file a true and complete CIQ Form with the Galveston County Clerk if qualifier is required to file by the requirements of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. Qualifier is advised that it is an offense to fail to comply with the disclosure reporting requirements dictated under Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, and the failure to file may be grounds to void the contract, if qualifier is awarded a contract.

If qualifier has any questions about compliance with Chapter 176, qualifier may wish to consult its' legal counsel. Compliance is the individual responsibility of each person, business, and agent who is subject to Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code.

#### 42. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PARTIES/FORM 1295

Under Section 2252.908 of the Government Code, any business entity that enters into a contract with Galveston County that requires the approval of the Commissioners Court must submit a "Disclosure of Interested Parties" to the County prior to the execution of the contract. This form, the "Disclosure of Interested Parties" form was promulgated by the Texas Ethics Commission, and is the "Form 1295". **This procurement is subject to these requirements.** 

The Texas Ethics Commission was charged with promulgating rules to implement Section 2252.908 of the Government Code. The rules adopted by the Texas Ethics Commission are located at Sections 46.1, 46.3, and 46.5 of Title 1 of the Texas Administrative Code. Thus, the law covering these requirements is located at Section 2252.908 of the Government Code, and in Title 1, Sections 46.1, 46.3, and 46.5 of the Texas Administrative Code.

The Texas Ethics Commission's website is: <a href="www.ethics.state.tx.us">www.ethics.state.tx.us</a>. The area of the Texas Ethics Commission website pertaining to Form 1295 is:

www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf\_info\_form1295.htm.

Form 1295 must be completed electronically through the Texas Ethics Commission website (handwritten forms are not allowable). Once the business entity has completed their electronic filing of Form 1295, then the business entity must print out the electronically completed form, and sign and notarize the Form 1295. Once Form 1295 is signed and notarized, the business entity must submit their completed, signed, and notarized Form 1295 to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent.

Successful Qualifier is and shall be subject to these requirements, and no resultant contract may be executed by the Commissioners Court until the completed, signed, and notarized Form 1295 is on file with the County Purchasing Agent.

No portion of the Form 1295 process commits the County to any type of award of contract whatsoever.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

After the Purchasing Agent's Office receives the completed, signed, and notarized Form 1295, the Purchasing Agent's Office will, within 30 days, go the Texas Ethics Commission website to submit electronic confirmation of the County's receipt of the completed, signed, and notarized Form 1295.

### 43. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, PROPOSED DEBARMENT, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS & REQUIREMENT TO REGISTER IN SAM

Qualifier certifies that neither it, nor any of its Principals, are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, disqualified, excluded, or in any way declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency. Contractor agrees that it shall refund Galveston County for any payments made to Contractor while ineligible. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor's uncured failure to perform under this Agreement, if such should occur, may result in Contractor being debarred from performing additional work for the County, the respecting State Agency administering the grant funding the contract, if applicable, the State, FEMA or HUD (as applicable), and other Federal and State entities. Further, qualifier has executed the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Proposed Debarment, and Other Responsibility Matters and returned the fully completed and executed original certification with the submission of its qualifications. The truthful and fully completed and executed original of the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Proposed Debarment, and Other Responsibility Matters must be included with the submission of Qualifier's qualifications and is a mandatory requirement of this request for qualifications. Qualifier's failure to include the fully completed and executed original of this Certification shall be considered non-compliance with the requirements of this request for qualifications and grounds for the rejection of Qualifier's qualifications. Qualifier shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Agent if it becomes debarred or suspended, placed on the Consolidated List of Debarred Contractors, or in any other way becomes ineligible for award of contract by any Federal agency. This Certification is a material fact relied upon by Galveston County; if it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, in additional to the remedies available to Galveston County and the State agency administering this grant, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment of contractor.

If the contract to be awarded pursuant to this procurement involves the use of Federal funds, then qualifier must also be registered in the Federal Contractor Registry through the System for Award Management (SAM) to be eligible for award of contract pursuant to this procurement.

Information regarding the SAM is available at:

http://www.federalcontractorregistry.com/?gclid=CIG1hf2rr8wCFYkCaQoducANZw or at https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1.

No contract involving the use of Federal funds may be awarded to any qualifier unless and until such registration is current and in good standing under SAM. Successful qualifier must maintain SAM registration throughout the entire term of the agreement with the County. If this contract involves the use of Federal funds, then qualifier must enclose proof of such SAM registration within its response, which is also a mandatory requirement of this procurement; failure to enclose such proof shall be considered non-compliance with the requirements of this procurement and grounds for the rejection of Qualifier's response to this procurement (i.e., bid, proposal, or qualifications statement, as applicable).

RFQ #B191022 OPEN: 12/06/2018

TIME: 2:00 P.M.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –** REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION **RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES**

### GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 44. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

The County specifically reserves any claim it may have to sovereign, qualified, or official immunity as a defense to any action arising in conjunction with this contract.

#### 45. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE

Qualifier acknowledges and agrees that the contract is and shall be governed and construed by the laws of the State of Texas and that venue shall lie exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction in Galveston County, Texas.

#### 46. MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS

The Qualifier shall be required to notify the County of any potential for merger or acquisition of which there is knowledge at the time that a qualifications is submitted.

If subsequent to the award of any contract resulting from this request for qualifications the Qualifier shall merge or be acquired by another firm, the following documents must be submitted to the County:

- A. Corporate resolutions prepared by the awarded Bidder and the new entity ratifying acceptance of the original contract, terms, conditions and prices;
- B. New entity's Federal Identification Number (FEIN);
- C. New entity's proposed operating plans;
- D. New entity's proof of registration in SAM:
- E. New entity's certification regarding debarment:
- F. New entity's certification regarding lobbying; and
- G. W-9 Form for new entity.

Moreover, qualifier is required to provide the County with notice of any anticipated merger or acquisition as soon as qualifier has actual knowledge of the anticipated merger or acquisition. The New Qualifier's proposed plan of operation must be submitted prior to merger to allow time for submission of such plan to the Commissioners' Court for its approval.

#### 47. DELAYS

The County reserves the right to delay the scheduled commencement date of the contract if it is to the advantage of the County. There shall be no additional costs attributed to these delays should any occur. Qualifier agrees it will make no claims for damages, for damages for lost revenues, for damages caused by breach of contract with third parties, or any other claim by qualifier attributed to these delays, should any occur. In addition, qualifier agrees that any contract it enters into with any third party in anticipation of the commencement of the contract will contain a statement that the third party will similarly make no claim for damages based on delay of the scheduled commencement date of the contract.

#### 48. ACCURACY OF DATA

Information and data provided through this request for qualifications are believed to be reasonably accurate.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 49. SUBCONTRACTING/ASSIGNMENT

Qualifier shall not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer its contract in whole or in part without prior written permission of the County acting by and through its Commissioners' Court. Such consent, if granted, shall not relieve the qualifier of any of its responsibilities under this contract.

#### **50. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR**

Qualifier expressly acknowledges that it is an independent contractor. Nothing in this agreement is intended nor shall be construed to create an agency relationship, an employer/employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or any other relationship allowing County to exercise control or direction over the manner or method by which qualifier or qualifier's subcontractors perform in providing the requirements stated in the request for qualifications.

#### 51. MONITORING PERFORMANCE

The County shall have the unfettered right to monitor and audit the qualifier's work in every respect. In this regard, the qualifier shall provide its full cooperation and insure the cooperation of its employees, agents, assigns, and subcontractors. Further, the qualifier shall make available for inspection and/or copying when requested, original data, records, and accounts relating to the qualifier's work and performance under this contract. In the event any such material is not held by the qualifier in its original form, a true copy shall be provided.

#### 52. SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

State law prohibits the obligation and expenditure of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been approved by the Commissioners Court. Galveston County anticipates this to be an integral part of future budgets to be approved during the periods of this contract, except for unanticipated needs or events which may prevent such payments against this contract. However, Galveston County cannot guarantee the availability of funds, and enters into this contract only to the extent such funds are made available through appropriation (allocation) by the Commissioners Court. This contract shall not be construed as creating any debt on behalf of the County of Galveston in violation of TEX. CONST. art. XI, § 7, and it is understood that all obligations of Galveston County are subject to the availability of funds.

#### 53. CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO GRANT FUNDING

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the contract to be awarded by this procurement is funded with Federal or State grant funds, the qualifier acknowledges that the obligations of the County under the contract are contingent upon the continued availability of grant funding to meet the County's obligations. If the grant(s) to the County is reduced, de-obligated, or otherwise discontinued or terminated, Contractor agrees that the County may immediately terminate the contract without penalty or any liability whatsoever on the part of the County, the State, or the Federal awarding agency.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –**

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 54. PROCUREMENT ETHICS

Galveston County is committed to the highest ethical standards. Therefore, it is a serious breach of the public trust to subvert the public purchasing process by directing purchases to certain favored vendors, or to tamper with the competitive bidding process, whether it's done for kickbacks, friendship or any other reason. Since misuse of the purchasing power of a local government carries criminal penalties, and many such misuses are from a lack of clear guidelines about what constitutes an abuse of office, the Code of Ethics outlined below must be strictly followed.

Galveston County also requires ethical conduct from those who do business with the County.

#### **CODE OF ETHICS – Statement of Purchasing Policy:**

Public employment is a public trust. It is the policy of Galveston County to promote and balance the objective of protecting the County's integrity and the objective of facilitating the recruitment and retention of personnel needed by Galveston County. Such policy is implemented by prescribing essential standards of ethical conduct without creating unnecessary obstacles to entering public office.

Public employees must discharge their duties impartially so as to assure fair competitive access to governmental procurement by responsible contractors. Moreover, they should conduct themselves in such a manner as to foster public confidence in the integrity of the Galveston County procurement organization.

To achieve the purpose of this Article, it is essential that those doing business with Galveston County also observe the ethical standards prescribed herein.

#### General Ethical Standards:

It shall be a breach of ethics to attempt to realize personal gain through public employment with Galveston County by any conduct inconsistent with the proper discharge of the employee's duties.

It shall be a breach of ethics to attempt to influence any public employee of Galveston County to breach the standards of ethical conduct set forth in this code.

It shall be a breach of ethics for any employee of Galveston County to participate directly or indirectly in a procurement when the employee knows that:

- The employee or any member of the employee's family, has a financial interest pertaining to the procurement;
- A business or organization in which the employee or any member of the employee's family, has a financial interest pertaining to the procurement; or
- Any other person, business, or organization with which the employee or any member of the employee's
  family is negotiating or has an arrangement concerning prospective employment is involved in the
  procurement.

#### Gratuities:

It shall be a breach of ethics for any person to offer, give, or agree to give any employee or former employee of Galveston County, or for any employee or former employee of Galveston County to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other

## GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION

### RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy, or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or bid pending before this government.

#### Kickbacks:

It shall be a breach of ethics for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor for any contract for Galveston County, or to any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a contract, subcontract or order.

#### **Contract Clause:**

The prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks prescribed above shall be conspicuously set forth in every contract and solicitation by Galveston County.

#### **Confidential Information:**

It shall be a breach of ethics for any employee or former employee of Galveston County to knowingly use confidential information for actual or anticipated personal gain, or for the actual or anticipated gain of any other person.

#### **Prohibition against Contingent Fees:**

It shall be a breach of ethical standards for a person to be retained, or to retain a person, to solicit or secure a Galveston County contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except for retention of bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies for the purpose of securing business. Failure to abide by this section constitutes a breach of ethical standards.

#### Representation:

Qualifier represents and warrants, by signing and submitting its qualifications, that it has not retained anyone in violation of this section prohibiting contingent fees.

#### **Contract Clause:**

The representation prescribed above shall be conspicuously set forth in every contract and solicitation thereof.

#### 55. NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

Qualifier certifies, by signing and submitting a qualifications, that the qualifications is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the qualifications is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the contractor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited another contractor to put in a false or sham qualifications, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any contractor or anyone else to put in a sham qualifications or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the contractor has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communications, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the contractor of any other qualifier, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the proposed price, or that of any other contractor, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract or anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the qualifications are true; and further, that the contractor has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any cooperation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham qualifications and ensuing negotiations.

A blank Non-Collusion Affidavit is included with this qualifications packet. Qualifier must enclose a truthful and fully executed original Non-Collusion Affidavit with the submission of its qualifications. This is a mandatory requirement of this request for qualifications. Failure to include the truthfully and fully executed Non-Collusion Affidavit in the submission of its qualifications shall be considered non-compliance with the

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

requirements of this request for qualifications by the Qualifier and grounds for the rejection of Qualifier's submission.

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated by any company as a result of any verbal discussion with any County employee prior to the opening of responses to this request for qualifications.

No officer or employee of the County of Galveston, and no other public or elected official, or employee, who may exercise any function or responsibilities in the review or approval of this undertaking shall have any personal or financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or negotiation process thereof. The above compliance request will be part of all County of Galveston contracts for this service.

#### 56. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Qualifier certifies that:

- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the bidder, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence a department or employee of an agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.
- b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence a department or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, a department or employee of congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the bidder shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.
- c. Qualifier shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

The truthful and fully completed and executed original of the Certification Regarding Lobbying (included with bid packet) must be included with the submission of qualifier's response and is a mandatory requirement of this request for qualifications. Qualifier's failure to include the fully completed and executed or original of this Certification shall be considered non-compliant with the requirements of this request for qualifications and grounds for the rejection of the qualifier's response. Submission of the certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into a contract with qualifier and is imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, United States Code. Further, any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

#### 57. NON-DISCRIMINATION

a. Equal Employment Opportunity: Qualifier will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, genetic information or veteran status.
 Qualifier will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, genetic information or veteran status. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment; upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Qualifier agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices of employment.

Qualifier will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of qualifier, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, genetic information, or veteran status.

Qualifier will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.

Qualifier will include the provisions herein in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted.

- b. Drug Free Work Place Act: Qualifier shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Public Law 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. § 8102, et seq.) and implementing regulations thereunder.
- c. Americans with Disabilities Act: Qualifier shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-136) and implementing regulations thereunder.
- d. OSHA Regulations: Qualifier agrees to maintain and to display any applicable materials for its employees in accordance with OSHA regulations.
- e. Compliance with Immigration Laws and Use of E-Verify: Qualifier agrees to comply with all requirements of the U.S. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended, and any implementing regulations thereto. Qualifier further agrees to utilize the E-Verify system through the Department of Homeland Security on its employees. Qualifier shall not employ unauthorized aliens, and shall not assign services to be performed to any supplier or subcontractor who are unauthorized aliens. If any personnel performing any services hereunder are discovered to be an unauthorized alien, then Qualifier will immediately remove such personnel from performing services hereunder and shall replace such personnel with personnel who are not unauthorized alien(s).
- f. State and Federal Law Compliance: Qualifier agrees to comply with all other State and Federal laws and regulations applicable to the provision of services under this contract.

#### 58. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT

Qualifier shall keep and maintain all records associated with this contract for a minimum of five (5) years from the close of the contract or as required by Federal or State law or regulation, whichever period is longer. If awarded this contract, qualifier shall allow the County reasonable access to the records in qualifier's possession, custody, or control that the County deems necessary to assist it in auditing the services, costs, and payments provided hereunder. If this contract involves the use of Federal or State funds, then qualifier shall also allow reasonable access to representatives of the Office of Inspector General, the General Accounting Office, the State Auditor's Office, and the other Federal and/or State agencies overseeing the funds that such entities deem necessary to facilitate review by such agencies and qualifier shall maintain fiscal records and supporting documentation for all expenditures in a manner that conforms with OMB Circular A-87 (relocated to 2 C.F.R. Part 225) and this contract.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

#### 59. TITLE VI ASSURANCES/TxDOT

The County is subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Federal and State laws and regulations of the United States Department of Transportation and Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT). Pursuant to these requirements, the County must have its contractors provide required assurances on compliance with non-discrimination by itself and its subcontractors. The Title VI Assurances within this Subsection are not exhaustive – whenever any Federal, State, or Local requirement requires additional clauses, this list shall not be construed as limiting. Contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafter, DOT)

  Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this contract.
- (2) Non-discrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability or Veteran status in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- (3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability or Veteran status.
- (4) Information and Reports: The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by the Galveston County or the Texas Department of Transportation to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information the Contractor shall so certify to Galveston County or the Texas Department of Transportation as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- (5) Sanctions for Non-compliance: In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, Galveston County shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the Texas Department of Transportation may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
  - (a) withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies, and/or;
  - (b) cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.
- (6) Incorporation of Provisions. The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (6) in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as Galveston County or the Texas Department of Transportation may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance: Provided, however, that, in the event Contractor

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request Galveston County to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of Galveston County, and, in addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

#### 60. SECTION 231.006, FAMILY CODE/DELINQUENT CHILD SUPPORT

Pursuant to Title 5, Section 231.006 of the Texas Family Code, as applicable, Qualifier certifies that it, including all of its principals, is/are current in child support payments and that it is eligible to receive payments from State funds under a contract for property, materials, or services. Qualifier acknowledges and agrees that if it is awarded this contract, then the ensuing agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate. Finally, by the submission of its response in this request for qualifications, the Qualifier certifies that it has included the names and social security numbers of each person with at least 25% ownership interest in Qualifier within its response to the request for qualifications and that all such persons are current in child support payments.

#### 61. ANTITRUST

Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1, et seq., and Texas Business and Commerce Code, Chapter 15, Contractor, by the submission of its qualifications, certifies that neither Contractor nor any natural person, proprietorship, firm, corporation, partnership, association, or institution represented by Contractor or anyone acting for such natural person, proprietorship, firm, corporation, partnership, association, or institution has violated any Federal or State antitrust laws or communicated the nature of the offer, directly or indirectly, to any competitor or other person engaged in a similar line of business.

#### 62. LABOR STANDARDS

On contracts funded under a federal grant: Qualifier acknowledges that the contract to be awarded pursuant to this solicitation is on a grant program funded with Federal funds. Qualifier shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 5 and Part 30 and shall be in conformity with Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity", Copeland, "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145, 29 C.F.R. Part 3), the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148, 29 C.F.R. Parts 1,3, and 5), the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701 et seq.), and all other applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards, insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this Agreement. Qualifier is also responsible for ensuring that all subcontractors comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 5 and Part 30 and shall be in conformity with Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity", Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act, the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (29 CFR Parts 1, 3 and 5), the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701 et seq.), and all other applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards, insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this Agreement.

#### 63. PROCUREMENT LAWS

- a. Qualifier shall comply with all applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, and regulations.
- b. If this contract is made pursuant to a federal award, then Contractor acknowledges that the contract is subject, without limitation, to applicable provisions within 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Contractor shall comply with applicable provisions within 2 C.F.R., Sections 200.319 through 200.326, including but not limited to the following:

- 1.) Equal Employment Opportunity, 41 C.F.R. Part 60-1.4(b) (applicable to federally assisted construction contracts).
  - (a) During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:
    - (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national original, disability, or veteran status. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national original, disability or veteran status. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
    - (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national original, disability, or veteran status.
    - (3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
    - (4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
    - (5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to contractor's books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
    - (6) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions as may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
    - (7) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

- 2.) Small and minority business, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms (2 C.F.R. § 200.321). The County is required to take affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. This includes requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let in the performance of this contract, to itself take affirmative steps in letting the subcontract. Accordingly, if subcontracts are to be let in the performance of this contract, the contractor must take affirmative steps in the letting of the subcontract(s), which must include:
  - (a) placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
  - (b) assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
  - (c) dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and
  - (d) using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

In accordance with FEMA procurement guidance:

A small business is a business that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding on Galveston County contracts, and qualified as a small business under the Small Business Administration criteria and size standards at 13 C.F.R. Part 121.

A women's business enterprise is a business enterprise that is: (a) at least 51 percent owned by one or more women or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more women; and (b) whose management and daily operations are controlled by one or more women.

A minority business is a business that is (a) at least 51 percent owned by one or more minority group members or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more minority group members; and (b) whose management and daily operations are controlled by one or more minority group members.

- 3.) Davis-Bacon Act as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act as supplemented by the Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractor must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity (the County) must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be condition upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contract must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145) as supplemented by the Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States").
- 4.) Compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act. Contractor is prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which the person is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

Federal awarding agency. "Whoever, by force, intimidation, or threat of procuring dismissal from employment, or by any other manner whatsoever induces any person employed in the construction, prosecution, completion or repair of any public building, public work, or building or work financed in whole or in part by loans or grants from the United States, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is entitled under his contract of employment, shall be fined under this title [Title 18, U.S.C.] or imprisoned not more than five years, or both." 18 U.S.C. § 874.

- (a) Contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. Part 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract.
- (b) The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as the Federal awarding agency may be appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses.
- (c) Breach. A breach of the contract clause above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

#### 5.) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

- (a) Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the County in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by the Department of Labor regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 5. Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.S. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchase of supplies or material or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contractors for transportation or transmission of intelligence.
- (b) Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.
  - (1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and onehalf times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
  - (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this subsection the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this subsection, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard work week of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this subsection.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

- (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The awarding Federal agency, State agency, or the County shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this subsection.
- (4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this subsection and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this subsection.

#### 6.) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contractor Agreement.

- (a) If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under the "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.
- (b) Stafford Act Disaster Grants. This requirement does not apply to Public Assistance, Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Crisis Counseling Assistance and Training Grant program, Disaster Case Management Grant Program, and Federal Assistance to Individuals and Households Other Needs Assistance Grant Program, as FEMA awards under these programs do not meet the definition of "funding agreement."
- (c) The regulations and 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) currently defines "funding agreement" as any contract, grant, or cooperative agreement entered into between any Federal agency, other than the Tennessee Valley Authority, and any contractor for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work funded in whole or in part by the Federal government. This term also includes any assignment, substitution of parties, or subcontract of any type entered into for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under a funding agreement as defined in the first sentence of this paragraph.

### 7.) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 – 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 933 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387), as amended.

- (a) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq., and agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Contract Act, as amended, 33 U.S. C. § 1251, et seq.
- (b) The contractor agrees to report each violation of the Clean Air Act and/or the Federal Water Pollution Control Act to the Federal awarding agency, the State agency administering the grant, and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and understands and agrees that the Federal awarding agency, the State agency, and the EPA will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to Galveston County, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS –**

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

8.) **Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689).** A contract award must not be made to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 and 12689. The Contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, Subpart C, and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. Qualifier agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C, and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, Subpart C, while this offer is valid and through the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The qualifier further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

#### 9.) Procurement of Recovered Materials.

- (a.) A non-Federal entity that is a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of the State and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, Public Law No. 89-272 (1965) (codified as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act at 42 U.S.C. § 6962).
- (b.) In the performance of this contract, the contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired—
  - (1) Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
  - (2) Meeting contract performance requirements; or
  - (3) At a reasonable price.
- (c) Information about this requirement is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines website, <a href="http://www.epa.gov/cpg/">http://www.epa.gov/cpg/</a>. The list of EPA-designated items is available at <a href="https://www.epa.gov/cpg/products.htm">https://www.epa.gov/cpg/products.htm</a>.

In the event of any discrepancy between the provisions in this Section 63 of General Provisions and provisions on the same subject elsewhere within this procurement, the most stringent shall control.

#### 64. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION

This contract contains the entire agreement between the parties. Any prior agreement, promise, negotiation or representation not expressly set forth in this contract has no force or effect. Any subsequent modification to this contract must be in writing, signed by both parties.

An official representative, employee, or agent of the County does not have the authority to modify or amend this contract except pursuant to specific authority to do so granted by the Galveston County Commissioners Court.

#### 65. NOTICE

All notices or other communications required or permitted under this contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand, transmitted by facsimile, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested with proper postage affixed and addressed to the appropriate party at the following address or at

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

such other address as may have been previously given in writing to the parties (qualifier shall provide its notice information with its qualifications submission). If mailed, the notice shall be deemed delivered when actually received, or if earlier, on the third day following deposit in a United States Postal Service post office or receptacle, duly certified, return receipt requested, with proper postage affixed. If delivered in person, notice shall be deemed delivered when receipted for by, or actually received by, the receiving Party. If transmitted by facsimile, notice shall be deemed delivered when receipt of such transmission is acknowledged.

#### To the County at:

Hon. Mark Henry, County Judge of Galveston County 722 Moody (21st Street), Second (2nd) Floor Galveston, Texas 77550 Fax: (409) 765-2653

#### With copies to:

Rufus Crowder, CPPO CPPB, Galveston County Purchasing Agent 722 Moody (21st Street), Fifth (5th) Floor Galveston, Texas 77550 Fax: (409) 621-7997

Robert Boemer, Director, Galveston County Legal Department 722 Moody (21st Street), Fifth (5th) Floor Galveston, Texas 77550 Fax: (409) 770-5560

#### To the Contractor at:

(Qualifier to provide its contact name, address, and facsimile number for notice under the contract.)

#### 66. USE OF DHS SEAL, LOGO, AND FLAGS PROHIBITED WITHOUT PRIOR APROVAL

Contractor must obtain permission from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security financial assistance office (DHS FAO) **prior** to using DHS seals(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard Officials.

#### 67. FEDERAL GOVERNMENT NOT A PARTY

Contractor acknowledges that the Federal Government is not a party to the contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to Galveston County, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.

#### 68. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS

In contracts funded through Federal grants, Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chapter 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements (31 U.S.C. § 3801, et seq.) and the implementing regulations thereunder, 49 C.F.R. Part 79, apply to Contractors actions pertaining to the contract.

RFQ #B191022 OPEN: 12/06/2018 TIME: 2:00 P.M.

# GENERAL PROVISIONS – REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS – ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

### 69. LEAD AND ASBESTOS

If this request for qualifications involves remediation, demolition, reconstruction, rehabilitation, repair, or construction, or other applicable activities, the Contractor shall be responsible for performing investigations of lead and asbestos containing materials, and any required lead and asbestos abatement in compliance with Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and orders, relating to lead abatement and asbestos abatement as applicable, including but not limited to the Texas Asbestos Health Protection Act, codified as Chapter 1954 of the Occupations Code; the Texas Asbestos Health Protection Regulations, located at Title 25, Part 1, Chapter 295, Subchapter C of the Texas Administrative Code; Chapter 1955 of the Texas Occupations Code (lead-based paint abatement); the Texas Environmental Lead Reduction regulations, located at Title 25, Part 1, Chapter 295, Subchapter I of the Texas Administrative Code; the federal National Emission Standards for Asbestos regulations, located at Title 40, Part 61, Subpart M of the Code of Federal Regulations, and the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants. Contractor shall perform such inspections, encapsulation, remediation or other actions as required by federal, State, or local requirements in accordance with the federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Texas Department of State Health Services (TXDSHS), and Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requirements.

### 70. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GOVERNMENT RECORD

Respondent acknowledges that its submission in this Request for Qualifications, including its Statement of Qualifications, certifications, affidavits, Vendor Forms (i.e., PEID, W-9, CIQ, etc.) constitutes government records under Chapter 37 of the Texas Penal Code.

### 71. COMPLIANCE WITH GALVESTON COUNTY PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Respondent acknowledges, by its submission in this Request for Qualifications, that it shall comply with the Galveston County Purchasing Policies & Procedures Manual approved by Order of the Galveston County Commissioners Court on March 7, 2018.

End of General Provisions Section

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank

RFQ #B191022 OPEN: 12/06/2018 TIME: 2:00 P.M.

### SPECIAL PROVISIONS FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION & RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	PURPOSE	1	
2.	BACKGROUND AND PROJECTION DESCRIPTION1-	2	
3.	SCOPE OF SERVICES	4	
4.	WORK AUTHORIZATIONS	5	
5.	PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE	5	
6.	SPECIAL NOTE ON CONTRACT TERM	6	
7.	COMPENSATION	7	
8.	MULTIPLE AWARDS	7	
9	NO GUARANTEE OF VOLUME OR USAGE	7	
10.	MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS	8	
11.	INSURANCE 8-	9	
12.	PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS 10	0	
13.	TYPE OF CONTRACT, EXHIBTS TO RFQ	0	
14	PRE-QUALIFICATION CONFERENCE	0	
15.	PROCEDURE 10-12	2	
16.	DISCREPANCIES IN RESPONSES	2	
17.	RESPONSE FORMATTING	3	
18	ORGANIZATION OF SOQ	7	
19.	EVALUATION CRITERIA	7	
~ ~ · · ·			
QUALIFICATION FORMS18-20			
OWN	ERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM21	Ĺ	

The Special Provisions and the General Provisions of this Request for Qualifications and the Exhibits attached hereto are made a part of the agreement between the Parties. In the event of a conflict between the General Provisions and the Special Provisions, the terms of the Special Provisions shall control.

### 1. PURPOSE

Galveston County is issuing this Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to procure professional residential elevation and mitigation reconstruction services in the Galveston County Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program, which covers both incorporated and unincorporated areas of Galveston County, Texas. Galveston County expects to award multiple contracts through this RFQ as the purpose of this RFQ is to engage a pre-qualified Contractor pool to utilize in implementing the Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) Grant Program. Contractors must be eligible to participate in contracts involving Federal funds, as the FMA Program is a FEMA funded grant program.

### 2. BACKGROUND AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) Grant Program (FMA Program) is a long-term hazard mitigation assistance program funded through the United States Department of Homeland Security's Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The FMA Program is authorized by Section 1366 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968, as amended, with the goal of reducing or eliminating claims under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). Galveston County, a subapplicant, was awarded the three (3) FMA grants in the Fiscal Year 2015 application grant cycles. These grants are administered by the State of Texas, the grant applicant, by and through the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB). Galveston County, the sub-applicant, was eligible for, applied, and was awarded the three FMA grants, which ensue from the federal declaration of a major disaster under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act as amended (Stafford Act) from Hurricane Ike in 2008. Thus, as referred to herein, the FMA Program means the three FMA grants awarded to Galveston County as a subapplicant, and administered by the State of Texas through the TWDB involving the below listed grant administration contracts.

Galveston County has entered into contracts with the TWDB governing each of these FMA grants. These three contracts between Galveston County and the TWDB are the following:

- TWDB Contract No. <u>1400011849</u>, for the elevation of the designated home in the City of Texas City described in the grant application, which is at 7506 Meadowlark Lane, Texas City, Texas;
- TWDB Contract No. <u>1400011850</u>, for the mitigation reconstruction of the four designated homes in the City of Texas City described in the grant application, which are at: 2102 17<sup>th</sup> Avenue North, Texas City, Texas; 2301 8<sup>th</sup> Avenue North, Texas City, Texas; 319 14<sup>th</sup> Avenue North, Texas City, Texas; 4414 Edward Street, Texas City, Texas; and

• TWDB Contract No. <u>1500012085</u>, for the elevation of approximately 38 homes located within the incorporated and incorporated areas of the County described in the grant application and any eligible alternates, if any.

Qualifying homes in each grant are eligible for elevation or mitigation reconstruction as specified within each respective TWDB Contract; thus, it is anticipated that approximately four (4) homes shall be reconstructed and approximately thirty-nine (39) homes elevated through the County's FMA Program, all homes of which are insurable under the NFIP. Eligible homes are those listed within the County's grant application and are located in the unincorporated areas of Galveston County, Texas, and within the incorporated areas of the following municipalities: Clear Lake Shores, Dickinson, Friendswood, Galveston, Hitchcock, Jamaica Beach, League City, Santa Fe, and Texas City. The municipalities listed herein are based on the residences awarded in the grants, to the extent any alternates are used, then residences in additional incorporated areas of Galveston County may be used provided that such municipality's participation is eligible under FEMA requirements.

Selected Contractors will meet with homeowners and work with representatives of Galveston County to provide turn-key pricing and services for each respective project awarded to the Contractor. The County may award multiple contracts in this RFQ, and each respective elevation or mitigation reconstruction project will undergo separate bidding and review to select the elevation or reconstruction contactor, as applicable, for that individual FMA project.

As the services to be rendered hereunder include professional engineering services in the preparation and approval of plans and specifications and ensuing inspections for compliance and completion, the TWDB determined and advised Galveston County that the contractors to perform the residential elevation and mitigation reconstruction services in the FMA Program must be procured through a request for qualifications.

### 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Galveston County is seeking qualified contractors to perform residential elevation and mitigation reconstruction services to implement the individual residential FMA Elevation and Mitigation Reconstruction projects eligible under the respective TWDB contract. The following areas of expertise shall be required by the County for the successful implementation and administration of the FMA Program. The capability of the Respondent(s) to provide expertise in the services identified below will be considered favorably in the County's scorecard ranking and selection process. Respondents may subcontract for such services; however, Respondents shall remain responsible for services and self-performance is preferred. All subcontracting relationships for services shall be disclosed and clearly documented and must comply with TWDB subcontracting guidelines.

The scope of services within each individual FMA project will vary, as the circumstances in each home to be elevated/reconstructed will be different. However, successful Respondents' services will include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Provide professional labor, equipment, and materials adequate to perform the work in accordance with the scope of work for each eligible applicant's residential structure while ensuring that all applicable housing standards and codes are met;
- Meet with individual property owners to review the scope of work to be performed, including establishing a work schedule acceptable to property owners and Galveston County;
- Prepare plans and specification and perform construction in compliance with applicable city or county floodplain elevation requirements, code requirements, and TWIA requirements;
- Providing initial first floor elevation and obtaining final elevation certificates;
- Providing written 10/2/1 warranty from third-party warranty provider on each individual FMA project awarded to successful Respondent;
- Repair of damage caused to homes during the elevation project;
- Obtaining all necessary state and local permits and approvals after the land use permits are
  acquired, but prior to the commencement of the work for each structure, with copies of all
  permits provided to the County;
- Performing investigations for the presence of lead and/or asbestos containing materials and lead and asbestos abatement in compliance with applicable local, State, and Federal requirements;
- Coordination with property owner; utility disconnection and deactivation; and, when applicable in reconstruction, demolition of existing structure;
- Debris removal in accordance with all Federal, State, and local requirements, including the disposal of potential asbestos containing materials;
- Site preparation; and for reconstruction, the construction of new residential structures including 2, 3, and 4-bedroom floor plans in accordance with all applicable local and state codes and standards:
- Compliance with specialty construction elements associated with historic properties, including coordination with the State Historic Preservation and stakeholders in other jurisdictions;
- Compliance with applicable Americans with Disabilities Act requirements;;
- Pre-construction, construction, and post-construction photographs taken and provided to the County documenting services performed and compliance with permitting and building requirements;
- If Successful Respondent uses subcontractors, then prompt payment of all subcontractors for services rendered, and obtaining signed and notarized lien waivers from all subcontractors documenting proof of payment and providing copy of such lien waivers to the County with draw requests; and
- Maintaining job sites in a neat and orderly manner.

The FMA Program is a FEMA funded program and is subject to all grant requirements from FEMA and the TWDB applicable to the FMA Program. The FMA Program is a time limited program, and the County will require times for completion in each FMA project. Similarly, the County will require deadlines for the submission of performance and payments bonds and insurance to the County in each FMA Project, as this will be required before the County will issue a notice to proceed in a given FMA project. Contractors will be subject to monitoring and Special Provisions

performance evaluation by the County, which is required under FMA requirements and which may potentially impact the award of FMA projects to a given contractor as the FMA Program is implemented.

Inclusive of the three TWDB Contracts, of these 43 homes: thirty-nine (39) homes are to be elevated and four (4) homes reconstructed.

The elevation shall be to base flood elevation, unless a higher elevation is required by the respective municipality or subdivision/homeowner association that has mandatory deed restrictions which shall be reviewed on a case by case basis and which shall require TWDB approval. Elevation certificates shall be required before the elevation commences, and upon completion to verify the elevation and achieve compliance with local floodplain requirements. Construction of one (1) grant eligible ADA-compliant access ramp or mechanical lift to be provided on the exterior of the residence when an owner or a member of the owner's family has a permanent disability and a physician's written certification is obtained.

In accordance with FEMA guidance, mitigation reconstruction is the construction of an improved, elevated building on the same site where an existing building and/or foundation has been partially or completely demolished or destroyed. The four (4) homes designated for mitigation reconstructions have been determined in the grant process to be eligible for mitigation reconstruction and thus mitigation reconstruction includes include demolition and reconstruction. FEMA requires all mitigation reconstruction projects to be designed in accordance with American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 24-14.

All damages caused by the contractor during the elevation or mitigation reconstruction project shall be paid for by the contractor; these damages are ineligible grant costs and the FMA Program does not cover such costs – these are the responsibility of the contractor.

Ineligible work shall not be allowed, with the sole exception of ineligible work necessarily incidental to the elevation/reconstruction project (for example, the use of split-face block). Examples of ineligible work include, but are not limited to, building additions or auxiliary structures, additional landscaping for ornamentation beyond what existed at the site prior to the construction of the project, construction of new decks or porches, construction of expanded decks or porches, improvements for aesthetic reasons, or interior remodels. This list of examples is not exhaustive.

Finally, each project shall be subject to a written agreement between the contractor, the respective homeowner, and the County. As with all of the documents, the lien waivers to be supplied by contractor evidencing its proof of payment to subcontractors constitute government records and are subject to criminal penalty if falsified under Chapter 37 of the Texas Penal Code.

### 4. WORK AUTHORIZATIONS

All work requested of Respondents described in the Scope of Services section of this RFQ shall be issued by specific written work authorization and notice to proceed (NTP) from Galveston County. Such written authorization must include a particular scope of services, a schedule, a list of deliverables, and such other information or special conditions as may be necessary for the work requested. One or more authorizations may be issued under a contract during the contract term.

### 5. PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE

The timeline for this RFQ is listed below. Galveston County reserves the right to change these dates and times and will notify respondents of any changes, if any, through addendum by the Galveston County Purchasing Agent. .

### Action

# Advertise RFQ (first date of publication) Advertise RFQ (second date of publication) Pre-Qualification Conference Questions due from Respondents\* Statements of Qualifications due from Respondents (**RFQ Opening**)

### Day of Week Deadline (date and time)

Tuesday, November 6, 2018
Tuesday, November 13, 2018
N/A (not being conducted)
Tuesday, November 20, 2018, 5:00 p.m.
Tuesday, December 6, 2018, 2:00 p.m.

\*This is the deadline for submission of questions. Questions must be submitted **ONLY** to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent, and must be submitted by the deadline specified above to be considered. All questions must be submitted by email to the following email address and must specify "RFQ No. B191022", within the subject line of the email.

IMPORTANT: The Galveston County Purchasing Agent has established a designated email address for the submission of questions. In addition to the instructions in the subject line of the email, Respondents must only use this email address, which is:

### purchasing.bids@co.galveston.tx.us

### 6. SPECIAL NOTE ON CONTRACT TERM

The term of the contract between the County and successful Respondents herein is linked to the term of the County's contracts with the TWDB in the FMA Program and as such terms may be amended as authorized under TWDB and FEMA requirements. The current term of each contract between the County and the TWDB is the following:

- TWDB Contract No. 1400011849 as amended: the current term ends September 30, 2019;
- TWDB Contract No. 1400011850 as amended: the current term ends September 30, 2019;

and

• TWDB Contract No. 1500012085 as amended: the current term ends October 30, 2019.

As well, each home to be elevated or reconstructed, as applicable, will be subject to a separate agreement that will be between the contractor selected in that FMA project, the homeowner, and Galveston County (the "Tri-Party Agreement"). Each Tri-Party Agreement will specify a term applicable to that FMA project and specify draw requirements and other requirements associated with that given FMA project.

In no event may any term of contract exceed the term of the respective contract between the County and the TWDB covering that FMA project.

### 7. COMPENSATION

Selected successful Respondent(s) will be compensated on a negotiated fee subject to approval of draw requests in each of the four phases in each FMA project:

- a. Phase 1: 20% of the total contract amount in that FMA project.
  - **Pre-elevation/mobilization** permits obtained with copies of permits provided to County, design, performance and payment bonds, insurance, initial first floor elevation, interior and exterior pre-construction photographs submitted.
  - *Mitigation Reconstruction*: preliminary construction, permits obtained with copies of permits provided to County, design, performance and payment bonds, insurance, demolition of original structure and proper disposal thereof.
- b. **Phase 2:** 40% of the total contract amount in that FMA project.
  - *Elevation:* Raised, ready to set, building department inspections have occurred, engineer concurrence with percentage completion, verification of proper elevation height for project, homeowner concurrence with payment, signed and notarized lien waivers from subcontractors utilized (if any).
  - *Mitigation Reconstruction:* framing and rough-in's complete, building department inspections have occurred, engineer concurrence with percentage completion, homeowner concurrence with payment, signed and notarized lien waivers from subcontractors utilized (if any).
  - c. Phase 3: 30% of the total contract amount in that FMA project.
    - *Elevation:* Structure elevated to design height, foundation installed and reset, all mechanicals reconnected, applicable building inspections have occurred, engineer concurrence with percentage completion, homeowner concurrence with payment, signed and notarized lien waivers from subcontractors utilized (if any).
    - *Mitigation Reconstruction:* exterior complete, flatwork, landscaping and painted, interior drywall, green board & paint, interior doors, trim, flooring complete, applicable building inspections have occurred, engineer concurrence with percentage completion, homeowner concurrence with payment, signed and notarized lien waivers from subcontractors utilized (if any).

d. Phase 4: 10% of the total contract amount in that FMA project.

Elevation: Final Inspection, certificate of occupancy or equivalent, written confirmation of third party warranty provided to homeowner, elevation certificate, confirmation of satisfaction of applicable ADA requirements, engineer concurrence with completion, homeowner concurrence with payment, signed and notarized lien waivers from subcontractors utilized (if any), interior and exterior photographs submitted, all grant requirements met.

Mitigation Reconstruction: All construction complete, all utility connections restored, applicable inspections passed, and certificate of occupancy/completion received, homeowner concurrence with payment, signed and notarized lien waivers from subcontractors utilized (if any), interior and exterior photographs submitted, all grant requirements met.

### 8. MULTIPLE AWARDS

It is the County's intent to award multiple contacts under this RFQ. Any award is contingent upon the successful negotiation of final contract terms and approval and execution of the resultant contract by the Commissioners Court of Galveston County.

### 9. NO GUARANTEE OF VOLUME OR USAGE

The purpose of this RFQ is to engage a pre-qualified Contractor pool to utilize in implementing the FMA Program. Successful Respondents will be asked to compete in individual FMA projects and there is no guarantee of any volume or usage for Respondents herein, the usage of each Successful Respondent herein on the individual FMA projects may fluctuate. Accordingly, Galveston County makes no guarantee of the number of homes any given contractor will be selected to elevate or reconstruct in the FMA Program.

### 10. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

- Respondents must meet the minimum qualifications listed herein. Furthermore, RFQ
  Responses that appear unrealistic in terms of technical capability, commitment, that
  show a lack of technical competence, or that indicate a failure to comprehend the risk
  and complexity of a potential contract may be rejected.
- Respondent must have been in business for a minimum of three (3) years providing home elevation and/or complete reconstruction services, or the principals must have had three (3) years ownership/management experience in a previous company that provided residential elevation and/or complete reconstruction services
- Respondent must have demonstrated experience in providing residential elevation and/or complete home reconstruction services in the services listed in the Scope of Services; except that if Respondent is seeking to be awarded elevation projects, the

- Respondent must have demonstrated experience in providing residential building elevation services.
- Respondent must provide designs and specifications from a TWIA certified engineer who is also Professional Engineer (P.E.) licensed by and in good standing with the State of Texas.
- Respondent must provide a history of residential elevation projects and/or complete home reconstruction services the Respondent has completed for at least the last three (3) years (Respondents may present a longer period if they wish).
- Respondents must not be debarred, proposed for debarment, or in any way ineligible for participation in program funded with federal dollars. Respondent expressly acknowledges that the FMA Program is a program funded with federal dollars. Respondents must have a DUNS number and be registered in the System for Award Management (SAM), see URL: <a href="https://uscontractorregistration.com/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIueDjocbb3AIVB4RpCh0EBQm8EAAYASAAEgI1fPD\_BwE">https://uscontractorregistration.com/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIueDjocbb3AIVB4RpCh0EBQm8EAAYASAAEgI1fPD\_BwE</a>. This provision supplements the General Provision regarding debarment.
- Respondent must include a letter from a Bonding company highlighting Respondent's bonding capacity. Proof of bonding capacity of at least \$1,000,000.00 and outstanding payment and performance bond or bonds, in the minimum amount of the value of the home elevation project, to be maintained for the duration of each project.
- Contractor shall be required to provide each homeowner for whom they complete a home elevation or mitigation reconstruction, a written 10/2/1 warranty from third-party warranty provider. This warranty will be 10 years on the structural foundation system, 2 years on the mechanical, plumbing and utility reconnections, this shall include new connections and equipment on mitigation reconstruction, and 1 year on workmanship. Please describe the warranties Contractor will provide.
- Respondents must be registered with the Texas Secretary of State and authorized to conduct business in the State of Texas.
- Successful Respondents will or may be required to sustain multiple concurrent projects. Accordingly, each Respondent must demonstrate its financial fortitude by providing its annual reports for at least its last two fiscal years or income statements from such years (see Section 18 of these Special Provisions, Organization of SOQ, at discussion for information within Section 7 of Respondent's response)

### 11. INSURANCE

Respondent must submit, with its response, a current certificate of insurance evidencing coverage in the amounts specified below or greater. In lieu of submitting a certificate of insurance,

Respondents may submit a notarized statement from an insurance company authorized to conduct business in the State of Texas guaranteeing that Respondent has such insurance. Provided however, that successful Respondent(s) shall be required to provide a current certificate of insurance to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent's Office before Respondent commences any work hereunder. **Insurance shall be placed with insurers having an A.M. Best's rating of no less than A**. Such insurance must be issued by a casualty company authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and in standard form approved by the Board of Insurance Commissioners of the State of Texas, with coverage provisions insuring the public from loss or damage that may arise to any person or property by reason of services rendered by Contractor.

Galveston County shall be listed as an additional insured on each policy and all certificates of insurance and Contractor shall provide Galveston County with no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior notice of any changes to the policy during the contractual period.

Certificates of Insurance, fully executed by a licensed representative of the insurance company written or countersigned by an authorized Texas state agency, shall be filed with the County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days of the execution of this Agreement as written proof of such insurance and further provided that Contractor shall not commence work under this Agreement until Contractor has obtained all insurance required herein, provided written proof as required herein, and received written notice to proceed issued from the County Purchasing Agent. Failure to provide such evidence of insurance within the ten (10) calendar day period shall constitute an event of default.

**Workers' Compensation Insurance**. Respondent shall carry in full force Workers' Compensation Insurance Policy(ies), if there is more than one employee, for all its employees, including but not limited to full time, part time, and emergency employees employed by the Contractor.

**Commercial General Liability**. Respondent shall carry in full force commercial general liability insurance with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence and \$2,000,000 in the aggregate. The Policy shall, minimally, cover liability for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage.

**Business Automobile Liability**. Respondent shall carry in full force business automobile liability coverage with a combined bodily injury/property damage limit of not less than \$1,000,000 each accident. The policy shall cover liability arising from the operation of licensed vehicles by policyholder.

**Professional Liability**. Respondent shall carry in full force professional liability insurance with limits of not less than \$1,000,000.00.

**Subrogation Waiver**. Contractor and Contractor's insurance carrier shall waive any and all rights to subrogation against Galveston County in regard to any suit or claim arising out of personal injury or property damage resulting from Contractor's performance under the agreement. Special Provisions

### 12. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

Respondents are advised that performance and payment bonds shall be required in each elevation project and in each mitigation project. Bonds must, minimally, conform to The American Institute of Architects (AIA) Document 312.

### 13. TYPE OF CONTRACT, EXHIBITS TO RFQ

It is the County's intent to enter into one or more contracts through this RFQ, each of which must meet FEMA and TWDB requirements. It is imperative that all Respondents seeking a contract under this RFQ familiarize themselves with and understand they must comply with the procurement standards referenced in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Sections 200.317-200.326 and Appendix II, the TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines, and the DSHS Standard Terms and Conditions. To this end:

- A copy of 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-200.326, and Appendix II are attached as **Exhibit A** of these Special Provisions.
- A copy of the TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines is attached as **Exhibit B** of these Special Provisions.
- A copy of the DSHS Standard Terms and Conditions are attached as Exhibit C of these Special Provisions.
- Exhibits A, B, and C are each incorporated herein for all purposes.

### 14. PRE-QUALIFICATION CONFERENCE

A pre-qualifications conference is not being conducted in this Request for Qualifications.

### 15. PROCEDURE

To be considered responsive to this RFQ, Respondents shall submit a Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) and the information requested in this RFQ.

The Respondent shall submit **one** (1) **original SOQ** marked "**ORIGINAL**" and **seven** (7) **identical copies** numbered sequentially (1 of 7; 2 of 7; 3 of 7; 4 of 7; 5 of 7; 6 of 7; and 7 of 7), together with the documents requested in the Vendor Packet and the enclosed forms. Failure to meet this condition may result in disqualification of the SOQ, and the Respondent shall receive no further consideration. For ease of evaluation, the SOQs shall be presented in a format listed in this RFQ. Responses to each section and subsection shall be labeled so as to indicate which item is being addressed. Variances from the required format and organization will be considered negatively in the evaluation process.

The One (1) Original and Seven (7) copies shall be delivered to Rufus Crowder, CPPO, CPPB, the Purchasing Agent for Galveston County, no later than 2:00 p.m. on <u>Tuesday</u>, <u>December 6, 2018</u>, at the following location, which is also the mail/delivery instructions:

Rufus G. Crowder, CPPO CPPB Galveston County Purchasing Agent 722 21<sup>st</sup> Street (Moody), 5<sup>th</sup> Floor Galveston, Texas 77550

The Review Committee (Committee) will review the submitted Statements of Qualifications and upon review of the submitted SOQ's will establish an order of ranking of the respondents based on their response to this RFQ. In order to seek additional information from the Respondents the Committee may develop a short list of Respondents to interview for the project(s). Respondents not selected for further consideration will be notified at the first opportunity.

Interviews with selected firms and/or individuals will be held in the Purchasing Conference Room, located at the Galveston County Courthouse, 722 Moody Avenue (21st street), Fifth (5th) Floor, Galveston, Texas, 77550, at which time the selected candidates may be asked to present additional information to support their SOQ's and introduce their prime team members. Selected candidates will be notified of interview times.

Respondents desiring an explanation or interpretation relative to this solicitation must request it in writing. Oral explanations or instructions will not be binding. Any information given to a Respondent, which in the opinion of the County affects all responders or would be prejudicial to other respondents if not communicated, shall be furnished to all respondents as an addendum to the solicitation.

Respondents **MUST** direct all inquiries to the following:

Rufus G. Crowder, CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Agent
722 21st Street (Moody), 5th Floor
Galveston, Texas 77550

E-mail: purchasing.bids@co.galveston.tx.us

Respondents must e-mail their inquiries (with the subject line "FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES – RFQ # B191022 – Questions") for additional information and/or clarification to the address listed above. The request must include the Respondent's name and the RFQ number and title. Any request for additional information or clarification must be received in writing on or before the deadline for submission of questions (see Section 5 of these Special Provisions). Late requests or those not delivered to the proper address may not receive a reply. Respondents

shall not attempt to contact the County by any other means and the failure to follow this requirement may result in the disqualification of the Respondent (see Sections 4 and 8 of the General Provisions).

The Purchasing Agent's Office shall post the answers to the County website from the procurement web page and via addendum.

The County will issue responses to inquiries and any other corrections or amendments, it deems necessary, in the form of a written addendum, issued prior to the SOQ Submission Date. The County, at its sole discretion, may not issue a response to a RFI submittal. Respondents should not rely on any oral or written representations, statements, or explanations, other than those made in this RFQ or in any written addendum to this RFQ. Where there appears to be conflict between the RFQ and any issued addenda, the last addendum issued will prevail. Addenda will be posted and made available on the County's procurement web page. It is Respondent's sole responsibility to ensure receipt of all addenda prior to submitting its response. All Respondents should check the County's procurement web page for all addenda prior to submitting a response. The County's procurement web page is located at www.galvestoncountytx.gov/pu/Pages/BidListing.aspx.

The Respondent must acknowledge the receipt of all addenda on the forms provided. In the event a Respondent fails to acknowledge receipt of such addenda, the County may, at its sole discretion, determines that such failure to acknowledge any or all addenda does not materially affect the Response and waive the acknowledgement of one or more addenda.

Respondents who submit inquiries *after* the deadline date for receipt of questions indicated on the Procurement Timeline, risk that its' response in the procurement will not be responsive or competitive because the County is not able to respond to the inquiry before the SOQ receipt date or in sufficient time for the Respondent to prepare a responsive or competitive submittal.

All questions and responses as posted on the County website are considered an addendum to, and part of, this RFQ. Each Respondent shall be responsible for monitoring the County website for new or revised RFQ information. The County shall not be bound by any verbal information nor shall it be bound by any written information that is not either contained within the RFQ or formally issued as an addendum by the Purchasing Agent's Office.

### 16. DISCREPANCIES IN RESPONSES

The original and copies should be identical. However, if a discrepancy or discrepancies are found between two or more copies of the SOQs, the original will provide the basis for resolving such discrepancies. If one copy of the SOQ is not clearly marked "ORIGINAL" the County may reject the SOQ. However, the County may, at its sole discretion, select one clearly marked copy to be used as the original.

### 17. RESPONSE FORMATTING

Respondent shall provide one (1) original and seven (7) hard-copies of its Response and one electronic copy of its Response on CD or thumb drive when necessary on or before the deadline specified herein. Respondents shall carefully read this request for qualifications in its entirety and submit its response as specified herein.

- The combined number of pages between corporate profile and project approach (Tabs 2 and 3) shall not exceed forty (40) and Respondent may choose any internal breakdown for the 40 page limitation.
- Front and back covers, divider pages, and table of contents do not count towards any page limitation. Annual reports, resumes/CVs, financials and enclosed Vendor Forms do not count towards any page limitation.
- Pages shall be limited to standard letter size, 8.5 by 11.0 inches, except that organizational charts and graphics may include folded/pull-out pages that when folded fit within the 8.5 by 11.0 inches.
- Pages shall be numbered sequentially, with the first page of the Introduction serving as page number one (1).
- Font size is limited to no smaller than font size 12, except that organizational charts, other graphics, and footers may be as small as font size 9.
- The responses are each to be provided within a three-ring binder (other than the CD or thumb drive if necessary), include an accurate table of contents, and be organized/tabbed in the sections described below. Additionally, the original binder shall be labeled "Original", and the copies shall each be labelled "Copy" with sequential numbering.

If complete responses cannot be provided without referencing supporting documentation, such documentation must be provided with the SOQ, with specific references made to the section tab number, page, and/or paragraph where the supporting information can be found. SOQs are to be prepared in such a way as to provide a straightforward, concise delineation of capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFQ.

Emphasis should be concentrated on conformance to the RFQ instructions, responsiveness to the RFQ requirements, and on completeness and clarity of content.

### 18. ORGANIZATION OF SOO

Within each three-ring binder, the Respondent's response should be organized as follows:

Section 1. Introduction (no more than two (2) pages). The introduction shall state the title and number of this RFQ, describe Respondent's availability and commitment to undertake services hereunder, identify Respondent's knowledge and expertise and benefits to be derived by the County from engaging Respondent, identify the key personnel of Respondent's team, describe the organizational relationship of team members and the projected responsibilities to be performed by each team member/key personnel, and summarily describe Respondent's approach to performing the services herein. If Respondent is proposing a team or multiple-entity arrangement to perform services, the cover letter shall identify the lead firm, the proposed subcontractor(s), and the nature of the business relationship. The introduction must also identify the key point of contact for Respondent in this procurement and provide that person's name, title, phone number, and email address. Finally, the introduction shall state the Respondent's full corporate name, and shall state who is authorized to legally bind the Respondent and shall be signed by that individual.

**Section 2**. **Corporate Profile/Company Narrative** (no more than 40 pages, inclusive of Section 3, Project Approach). Respondent's corporate profile/company narrative shall, for Respondent and, if applicable, each team member:

- Disclose the full and legal name of the firm;
- state the form of business/ownership structure of each firm (i.e., corporation, partnership, LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.), including any wholly-owned subsidiaries, affiliated companies, or joint ventures;
- if a corporation, limited partnership, or limited liability company, specify the date of formation and the state of incorporation;
- state whether the Respondent is registered with the Texas Secretary of State and authorized to conduct business in the State of Texas under the name on its response, and provide proof of such registration with the Texas Secretary of State;
- state the location of the company headquarters and any field office(s) that may provide services for any contract resulting from this RFQ;
- include the name, email address, physical address, and telephone number of Respondent's point of contact for any contract resulting from this RFQ; and
- state the full name, address, phone number and point of contact for each subcontractor Respondent proposes to utilize. Respondent must disclose any affiliation or financial interest it has in any subcontractor and/or that the subcontractor has in Respondent.

This section should describe the Respondent's past experience and satisfactory performance and contracts with local and State governmental entities in terms of cost control, quality of work, and demonstrated knowledge and compliance with performance schedules and Federal and State Special Provisions

requirements. Respondent should identify the benefits the County would receive from retaining Respondent – such benefits may include unique or specialized processes, staff qualifications, specialized experiences, or other factors to distinguish the Respondent. Respondent must identify the key individuals that will be working with the County and summarize all such persons qualifications. If such personnel work for, are officers of, or otherwise affiliated with a team member, the relevant team member that the person is associated with shall be disclosed. Respondent shall include a narrative describing the firm(s) expertise and experience as they pertain to the services described herein. This section must list the location of the Respondent's office that will be conducting the work and provide its key staffing profile. Respondent should identify any special certifications, degrees, or professional licensures held by key personnel. Respondent should also describe the experience Respondent, its staff members/key personnel, and team members have had in similar size or type of projects. For example, if Respondent or any of its team members have performed construction or elevation services for local governments subsequent to federally declared disasters, this should be described. Or, for example, if Respondent has any prior experience in FEMA funded projects, it should include a description of these prior experiences. Respondent's staffing profile must describe personnel discipline(s) and must identify the Texas Professional Engineer(s) who will sign/seal engineering work products. Respondent should explain why it is qualified to provide the services described in this RFO and within Galveston County, and identify Respondent's strengths and advantages to Galveston County in selecting Respondent. Finally, Respondent must disclose the ownership interests utilizing the Ownership Disclosure Form provided for this purpose

Section 3. Project Approach (no more than 40 pages, inclusive of Section 2). Respondent should describe its proposed methodology to perform the services hereunder and to demonstrate its ability to interface with the local government personnel administering the contract. Respondent will have ongoing meetings with County personnel during the course of the ensuing agreement. This section should clearly demonstrate the Respondent's understanding of FEMA funded elevation and/or mitigation reconstruction projects applicable to residential structures and demonstrate Respondent's knowledge and experience in residential elevations, construction, and performing in compliance with Federal requirements and demonstrate Respondent's ability to perform services at project sites located within Galveston County.

**Section 4**. **Resumes**. Respondent must provide a key staffing profile and include the resumes for all its key personnel/staff members/team members. Resumes should describe the experience, expertise, and knowledge that the person brings to the team and each resume is limited to no more than two (2) pages.

### Section 5. Contract Terminations/Disallowed Funds/Litigation.

• Early terminations of contract. Respondent must disclose whether any contract it has entered into within the last five years that involved the use of federal, state, and/or local government funds has been terminated prior to contractual termination date and briefly describe the circumstances associated with the early termination. If Respondent has not

had any such contract terminated prior to termination date, then it must affirmatively state this. This area must be answered within the response.

- De-obligated/disallowed funds. Respondent must disclose whether any funds previously paid to Respondent on prior contracts involving the use of federal or state funds have ever been disallowed or de-obligated and describe the circumstances associated with the contract, the funds, and the disposition. If Respondent has not had any funds it received on prior contracts disallowed or de-obligated, then it must affirmatively state this. This area must be answered within the Response.
- Litigation history. Respondent must disclose whether it has been sued, initiated suit, or otherwise been involved with litigation relating to any of its prior disaster-related projects and describe such litigation including but not limited to the disposition of the litigation. This disclosure requirement pertains to current litigation, if any, and any litigation involvement for the preceding five (5) years. If Respondent has not had any litigation on prior disaster-related projects, including but not limited to elevation or mitigation reconstruction projects, then it must affirmatively state this. This area must be answered.

The above subjects **must be** addressed within Respondent's response. Thus, if Respondent has had no litigation, no de-obligated funds, or no early terminations of contract, the Respondent must make this affirmative statement. However, the failure to address the above three points within Respondent's response **shall disqualify** the Respondent from further consideration.

**Section 6.** Corporate Restructuring. Respondent must disclose whether it and any member of its team has had any name change or been involved with any acquisitions, transfers, mergers, or other corporate restructuring for the preceding five (5) year period and briefly describe the circumstances associated with such. If Respondent has had such changes described herein, then Respondent must disclose the information required under Section 5 above for such prior entities.

**Section 7**. **Financial Information**. Respondent should demonstrate its financial stability to ensure that it has the capacity to perform the services hereunder. This shall be evidenced by providing copies of its audited financial statements for the Respondent's last two (2) fiscal years. However, if the Respondent has not undergone an audit, it may provide financial statements for the last two years that have been reviewed by a certified public accountant, and further provided that to utilize this variance, Respondent must include a signed statement certifying that it has no audited financial statements.

**Section 8**. **Demonstrated Project Experience and References**. Respondent should provide a list of its prior or current contracts involving the use of federal funds and similar projects or programs for at least the last five (5) years. This information should include the clients names, a brief description of the project to include the type of services provided (i.e., elevation, reconstruction, etc.), the county and state where the services were provided within, and the project's starting and ending dates. This should also include listing the Respondent's staff assigned to a previous project

who will be designated for work ensuing from this RFQ. This should also include current contact information for the person or persons within each organization with oversight of the projects and who worked with the Respondent on the project. Respondent should also provide a minimum of three (3) additional references who worked with Respondent on any prior or current contracts and include a brief description of those contracts and state where the services were performed.

### Section 9. Authorization to conduct business in Texas (Registration with TxSOS). Respondent should provide proof of its registration and authorization to conduct business in Texas under the name on its response within Tab 9.

**Section 10**. **County Required Forms**. Respondent must include the information provided with the request for qualifications in its response. This includes the completed and executed W-9 form, request for person-entity identification data, the debarment certification, the non-collusion affidavit, the vendor direct deposit form (if applicable), insurance certificates, Ownership Disclosure Form, and any other forms/sheets/documents provided by the County in this procurement. Additionally, Respondent, by submission of its Statement of Qualifications, acknowledges that the forms and submissions in this RFQ constitute governmental records under Chapter 37 of the Texas Penal Code.

### 19. EVALUATION CRITERIA

The award will be made to the responsible Contractors on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications. RFQ Responses shall be evaluated and scored in accordance with the below criteria.

Item	Scoring Percentage
Qualifications of Firm, including key staffing and financial	
fortitude	30%
Demonstrated experience performing residential building elevation	
services	30%
Demonstrated experience of performing residential reconstruction	
services	20%
Demonstrated experience in performing elevation and/or	
reconstruction services for other local or state governments under	10%
federally funded programs	
Demonstrated ability to efficiently provide building elevation or	
mitigation reconstruction services at project sites within Galveston	10%
County	
Total	100%

THE FIRM OF:	
Address:	
FEIN (TAX ID):	
The following shall be returned with your submittal. qualifications statement as non-responsive. It is the Respondent has received all addenda.	Failure to do so may be ample cause for rejection of responsibility of the Respondent to ensure that
<ol> <li>Items:         <ol> <li>Sections clearly labelled within 3-Ring binders</li> <li>References</li> <li>Addenda, if any.</li> <li>One (1) original and seven )7) copies</li> <li>Proof of authorization to conduct business in Telement Certification</li> <li>Non-Collusion Affidavit</li> <li>Certification regarding lobbying</li> <li>Vendor Packet Forms (PEID, W-9, CIQ, Direct Deposit (if applicable))</li> </ol> </li> <li>Insurance Certification</li> <li>Ownership Disclosure Form</li> </ol> Respondent's person to contact regarding this submit	
Title: Phone:	Fax:
E-mail address:	
Name of person authorized to bind the Respondent:_	
Signature:	Date:
Title:Phone:	Fax:
E-mail address:	

### References:

Please submit at least five (5) references including name of organization, the name and title of a contact person and telephone number for contact person, and a brief description of the project (number of employees, number of different jobs/classes, work performed, etc.), duration of project. Use additional pages if necessary.

Firm Name	
Contact	
Title	E-mail
Mailing Address	
Phone	Fax
Description and dates of project	
Firm Name	
Contact	
Title	E-mail
Mailing Address	
Phone	Fax
Description and dates of project	
Firm Name	
Contact	
Title	E-mail
Mailing Address	
Phone	Fax
Description and dates of project	

Firm Name	
Contact	
Title	E-mail
Mailing Address	Manual 1991
Phone	Fax
Description and dates of project	
Firm Name	
Title	
Mailing Address	
	Fax
Phone	

### OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM

1.	Respondent's	full, correct, and legal name is:
2.	Respondent is	organized as a business entity as noted below (check applicable entity):
	So	le Proprietorship
	Co	orporation
	Par	
		mited Partnership mited Liability Company
		on-profit corporation
	Un	aincorporated Association
	Otl	her (specify here:)
3.	List all individ (if none, state	luals owning 10% or more of the outstanding shares of stock in the corporation "NONE"). Use additional pages if necessary:
	Name	Address
4.	List each mem limited liability	ber or manager (if no members) having an equity interest of 10% or more in the y company (if none, state "NONE"). Use additional pages if necessary.
	Name	Address

### **EXHIBIT A**:

2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317 – 200.326, and Appendix II

### PROCUREMENT STANDARDS

### 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317 – 200.326 & 2 C.F.R. PART 200, APPENDIX II

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

2 C.F.R. § 200.317.	Procurements by states	. 2		
2 C.F.R. § 200.318.	General procurement standards.	. 2		
2 C.F.R. § 200.319.	Competition	. 4		
2 C.F.R. § 200.320.	Methods of procurement to be followed.	. 5		
	Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and			
2 C.F.R. § 200.322.	Procurement of recovered materials	. 8		
2 C.F.R. § 200.323.	Contract cost and price	. 9		
2 C.F.R. § 200.324.	Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity review.	. 9		
2 C.F.R. § 200.325.	Bonding requirements.	10		
2 C.F.R. § 200.326.	Contract provisions.	11		
2 C.F.R. Part, 200, Appendix II				

### PROCUREMENT STANDARDS

### 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317 – 200.326 & 2 C.F.R. PART 200, APPENDIX II

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.317. Procurements by states.

When procuring property and services under a Federal award, a state must follow the same policies and procedures it uses for procurements from its non-Federal funds. The state will comply with §200.322 Procurement of recovered materials and ensure that every purchase order or other contract includes any clauses required by section §200.326 Contract provisions. All other non-Federal entities, including subrecipients of a state, will follow §§ 200.318 General procurement standards through 200.326 Contract provisions.

69 FR 26280, May 11, 2004; 78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 20313

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.318. General procurement standards.

- (a) The non-Federal entity must use its own documented procurement procedures which reflect applicable State, local and tribal laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable Federal law and the standards identified in this part.
- (b) Non-Federal entities must maintain oversight to ensure that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.

(c)

(1) The non-Federal entity must maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the non-Federal entity may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts. However, non-Federal entities may set standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. The standards of conduct must provide for

disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents of the non-Federal entity.

- (2) If the non-Federal entity has a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a state, local government, or Indian tribe, the non-Federal entity must also maintain written standards of conduct covering organizational conflicts of interest. Organizational conflicts of interest means that because of relationships with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, the non-Federal entity is unable or appears to be unable to be impartial in conducting a procurement action involving a related organization.
- (d) The non-Federal entity's procedures must avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach.
- (e) To foster greater economy and efficiency, and in accordance with efforts to promote cost-effective use of shared services across the Federal Government, the non-Federal entity is encouraged to enter into state and local intergovernmental agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.
- (f) The non-Federal entity is encouraged to use Federal excess and surplus property in lieu of purchasing new equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and reduces project costs.
- (g) The non-Federal entity is encouraged to use value engineering clauses in contracts for construction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions. Value engineering is a systematic and creative analysis of each contract item or task to ensure that its essential function is provided at the overall lower cost.
- (h) The non-Federal entity must award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical resources. See also § 200.213 Suspension and debarment.
- (i) The non-Federal entity must maintain records sufficient to detail the history of procurement. These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price.

(j)

(1) The non-Federal entity may use a time and materials type contract only after a determination that no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time and materials type contract means a contract whose cost to a non-Federal entity is the sum of:

- (i) The actual cost of materials; and
- (ii) Direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general and administrative expenses, and profit.
- (2) Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-materials contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, each contract must set a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the non-Federal entity awarding such a contract must assert a high degree of oversight in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls.
- (k) The non-Federal entity alone must be responsible, in accordance with good administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. These standards do not relieve the non-Federal entity of any contractual responsibilities under its contracts. The Federal awarding agency will not substitute its judgment for that of the non-Federal entity unless the matter is primarily a Federal concern. Violations of law will be referred to the local, state, or Federal authority having proper jurisdiction.

78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75885, Dec. 19, 2014; 80 FR 43309, July 22, 2015; 80 FR 45395, July 30, 2015

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.319. Competition.

- (a) All procurement transactions must be conducted in a manner providing full and open competition consistent with the standards of this section. In order to ensure objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals must be excluded from competing for such procurements. Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include but are not limited to:
  - (1) Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business;
  - (2) Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding:
  - (3) Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies;
  - (4) Noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts;
  - (5) Organizational conflicts of interest;

- (6) Specifying only a "brand name" product instead of allowing "an equal" product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant requirements of the procurement; and
- (7) Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.
- (b) The non-Federal entity must conduct procurements in a manner that prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed state, local, or tribal geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. Nothing in this section preempts state licensing laws. When contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location may be a selection criterion provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract.
- (c) The non-Federal entity must have written procedures for procurement transactions. These procedures must ensure that all solicitations:
  - (1) Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description must not, in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when necessary, must set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible. When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a "brand name or equivalent" description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient requirements of procurement. The specific features of the named brand which must be met by offers must be clearly stated; and
  - (2) Identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.
- (d) The non-Federal entity must ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products which are used in acquiring goods and services are current and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. Also, the non-Federal entity must not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75885, Dec. 19, 2014

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.320. Methods of procurement to be followed.

The non-Federal entity must use one of the following methods of procurement.

(a) Procurement by micro-purchases. Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed the micro-purchase

threshold (§200.67 Micro-purchase). To the extent practicable, the non-Federal entity must distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-purchases may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the non-Federal entity considers the price to be reasonable.

- (b) Procurement by small purchase procedures. Small purchase procedures are those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, supplies, or other property that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold. If small purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from an adequate number of qualified sources.
- (c) Procurement by sealed bids (formal advertising). Bids are publicly solicited and a firm fixed price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. The sealed bid method is the preferred method for procuring construction, if the conditions in paragraph (c)(1) of this section apply.
  - (1) In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should be present:
    - (i) A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;
    - (ii) Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the business; and
    - (iii) The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.
  - (2) If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:
    - (i) Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them sufficient response time prior to the date set for opening the bids, for local, and tribal governments, the invitation for bids must be publicly advertised;
    - (ii) The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent attachments, must define the items or services in order for the bidder to properly respond;
    - (iii) All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids, and for local and tribal governments, the bids must be opened publicly;
    - (iv) A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Where specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation cost, and life cycle costs must be considered in determining which bid is lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken advantage of; and
    - (v) Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason.

- (d) Procurement by competitive proposals. The technique of competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a fixed price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. If this method is used, the following requirements apply:
  - (1) Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their relative importance. Any response to publicized requests for proposals must be considered to the maximum extent practical;
  - (2) Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources;
  - (3) The non-Federal entity must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of the proposals received and for selecting recipients;
  - (4) Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered; and
  - (5) The non-Federal entity may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort.
  - (e) [Reserved]
- (f) Procurement by noncompetitive proposals. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source and may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply:
  - (1) The item is available only from a single source;
  - (2) The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation;
  - (3) The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the non-Federal entity; or
  - (4) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.

78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75885, Dec. 19, 2014; 80 FR 54409, Sept. 10, 2015

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms.

- (a) The non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.
  - (b) Affirmative steps must include:
  - (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
  - (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
  - (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
  - (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
  - (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
  - (6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (1) through (5) of this section.

69 FR 26280, May 11, 2004; 78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, unless otherwise noted

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.322. Procurement of recovered materials.

A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75885, Dec. 19, 2014

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.323. Contract cost and price.

- (a) The non-Federal entity must perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold including contract modifications. The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation, but as a starting point, the non-Federal entity must make independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals.
- (b) The non-Federal entity must negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration must be given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.
- (c) Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal award are allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices would be allowable for the non-Federal entity under Subpart E—Cost Principles of this part. The non-Federal entity may reference its own cost principles that comply with the Federal cost principles.
- (d) The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of contracting must not be used.

69 FR 26280, May 11, 2004; 78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, unless otherwise noted

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.324. Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity review.

- (a) The non-Federal entity must make available, upon request of the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity, technical specifications on proposed procurements where the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity believes such review is needed to ensure that the item or service specified is the one being proposed for acquisition. This review generally will take place prior to the time the specification is incorporated into a solicitation document. However, if the non-Federal entity desires to have the review accomplished after a solicitation has been developed, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may still review the specifications, with such review usually limited to the technical aspects of the proposed purchase.
- (b) The non-Federal entity must make available upon request, for the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity pre-procurement review, procurement documents, such as requests for proposals or invitations for bids, or independent cost estimates, when:

- (1) The non-Federal entity's procurement procedures or operation fails to comply with the procurement standards in this part;
- (2) The procurement is expected to exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold and is to be awarded without competition or only one bid or offer is received in response to a solicitation;
- (3) The procurement, which is expected to exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, specifies a "brand name" product;
- (4) The proposed contract is more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold and is to be awarded to other than the apparent low bidder under a sealed bid procurement; or
- (5) A proposed contract modification changes the scope of a contract or increases the contract amount by more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold.
- (c) The non-Federal entity is exempt from the pre-procurement review in paragraph (b) of this section if the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity determines that its procurement systems comply with the standards of this part.
  - (1) The non-Federal entity may request that its procurement system be reviewed by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity to determine whether its system meets these standards in order for its system to be certified. Generally, these reviews must occur where there is continuous high-dollar funding, and third party contracts are awarded on a regular basis;
  - (2) The non-Federal entity may self-certify its procurement system. Such self-certification must not limit the Federal awarding agency's right to survey the system. Under a self-certification procedure, the Federal awarding agency may rely on written assurances from the non-Federal entity that it is complying with these standards. The non-Federal entity must cite specific policies, procedures, regulations, or standards as being in compliance with these requirements and have its system available for review.

69 FR 26280, May 11, 2004; 78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, unless otherwise noted

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.325. Bonding requirements.

For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the non-Federal entity provided that the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity has made a determination that the Federal interest is adequately protected. If such a determination has not been made, the minimum requirements must be as follows:

- (a) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. The "bid guarantee" must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of the bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.
- (b) A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract.
- (c) A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "payment bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required by law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract.

69 FR 26280, May 11, 2004; 78FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, unless otherwise noted

### 2 C.F.R. § 200.326. Contract provisions.

The non-Federal entity's contracts must contain the applicable provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200—Contract Provisions for non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards.

69 FR 26280, May 11, 2004; 78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, unless otherwise noted

### 2 C.F.R. Part, 200, Appendix II

In addition to other provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal entity, all contracts made by the non-Federal entity under the Federal award must contain provisions covering the following, as applicable.

- (A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$150,000, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
- (B) All contracts in excess of \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement.
- (C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in

- accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."
- (D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.
- (E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.
- (F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and

Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

- (G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended—Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
- (H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)—A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.
- (I) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)—Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.
  - (J) See §200.322 Procurement of recovered materials.

78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75888, Dec. 19, 2014

# SPECIAL PROVISIONS REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS B191022, FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES

## **EXHIBIT B**:

**TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines** 

## **TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines**

# Provisions required in all TWDB subcontracts

If you enter into a contract with the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB), please be advised that you are required to submit any and all subcontracts to the TWDB for review and inspection. This review is conducted to ensure that the subcontract is consistent with the terms and requirements included in the TWDB funding contract (prime agreement).

Items that should be included in each subcontract of a TWDB contract include:

- 1. **Contract Dates** there should be a starting date and ending date for your agreement.
- 2. **Contract Amount** your agreement should list the total value of the subcontract.
- 3. **Terms of Reimbursement** Subcontracts must be <u>cost reimbursable</u>. Lump sum agreements are not permitted for services. Please also note that the TWDB does not reimburse "handling costs" (mark-ups) on any expenses. Any eligible travel expenses related to a subcontract may be reimbursed at the current rate for State of Texas employees which can be found at:
  - https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/personal.php
- 4. **Scope of Work** the terms of the scope of work must be consistent with the scope of the prime agreement.
- 5. **Task Budget** as appropriate. The task budget must be consistent with the task budget specified in the TWDB prime agreement.
- 6. **Expense Budget** as appropriate. The expense budget must be consistent with the expense budget specified in the TWDB prime agreement.
- 7. **Signatures** each subcontract must be executed appropriately by signature, by each party to the agreement.

## Specific Clause Requirements

The requirements listed in the next section of this guideline document must be included in your subcontract agreement in order for the agreement to be acceptable to TWDB. Please note that these requirements are provided to facilitate the contracting process and as such are not intended to be legal advice that would establish or create an attorney-client relationship. It is recommended that an attorney be consulted for any legal advice that you may require.

Continued on next page

Updated: 2/19/2013 Page 1 of 4

## TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines, Continued

## State Auditor Clause

The following clause should be included in TWDB subcontracting agreements:

"By executing this Contract, the SUBCONTRACTOR accepts the authority of the State Auditor's Office, under direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct audits and investigations in connection with any and all state funds received pursuant to this contract. The SUBCONTRACTOR shall comply with and cooperate in any such investigation or audit. The SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to provide the State Auditor with access to any information the State Auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit. The SUBCONTRACTOR also agrees to include a provision in any subcontract related to this contract that requires the SUBCONTRACTOR to submit to audits and investigation by the State Auditor's Office in connection with any and all state funds received pursuant to the subcontract."

#### Financial Records Clause

The following clause should be included in TWDB subcontracting agreements:

"The SUBCONTRACTOR (S) and its contracted parties shall maintain satisfactory financial accounting documents and records, including copies of invoices and receipts, and shall make them available for examination and audit by the EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATOR of the TWDB. Accounting by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) and its contracted parties shall be in a manner consistent with generally accepted accounting principles."

#### Ownership Clause

The following clause should be included in TWDB subcontracting agreements:

Page 2 of 4

"The TWDB shall have unlimited rights to technical or other data resulting directly from the performance of services under this CONTRACT. It is agreed that all reports, drafts of reports, or other material, data, drawings, computer programs and codes associated with this CONTRACT and developed by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) or its contracted parties pursuant to this CONTRACT shall become the joint property of the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) and the TWDB. These materials shall not be copyrighted or patented by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) or by any consultants involved in this CONTRACT unless the EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATOR of the TWDB approves in writing the right to establish

Continued on next page

Updated: 2/19/2013

## TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines, Continued

# Ownership Clause (continued)

copyright or patent; provided, however, that copyrighting or patenting by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) or its SUB-SUBCONTRACTORs will in no way limit the TWDB 's access to or right to request and receive or distribute data and information obtained or developed pursuant to this CONTRACT. Any material subject to a TWDB copyright and produced by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) or TWDB pursuant to this CONTRACT may be printed by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) or the TWDB at their own cost and distributed by either at their discretion. The SUBCONTRACTOR (S) may otherwise utilize such material provided under this CONTRACT as it deems necessary and appropriate, including the right to publish and distribute the materials or any parts thereof under its own name, provided that any TWDB copyright is appropriately noted on the printed materials.

The SUBCONTRACTOR (S) and its contracted parties agree to acknowledge the TWDB in any news releases or other publications relating to the work performed under this CONTRACT."

#### No Debt Against The State Clause

The following clause should be included in TWDB subcontracting agreements:

"This SUBCONTRACT and Agreement shall not be construed as creating any debt by or on behalf of the State of Texas and the TWDB, and all obligations of the State of Texas are subject to the availability of funds. To the extent the performance of this SUBCONTRACT transcends the biennium in which this SUBCONTRACT is entered into, this SUBCONTRACT is specifically contingent upon the continued authority of the TWDB and appropriations therefore."

#### Licenses, Permit and Insurance Clause

The following clause should be included in TWDB subcontracting agreements:

"For the purpose of this CONTRACT, the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) will be considered an independent SUBCONTRACTOR and therefore solely responsible for liability resulting from negligent acts or omissions. The SUBCONTRACTOR (S) shall obtain all necessary insurance, in the judgment of the SUBCONTRACTOR (S), to protect themselves, the CONTRACTOR, the TWDB, and employees and officials of the TWDB from liability arising out of this CONTRACT. The SUBCONTRACTOR (S) shall indemnify and

Continued on next page

Updated: 2/19/2013 Page 3 of 4

## TWDB Subcontracting Guidelines, Continued

Licenses, Permit and Insurance Clause (continued) hold the TWDB and the State of Texas harmless, to the extent the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) may do so in accordance with state law, from any and all losses, damages, liability, or claims therefore, on account of personal injury, death, or property damage of any nature whatsoever caused by the SUBCONTRACTOR (S), arising out of the activities under this CONTRACT.

The SUBCONTRACTOR (S) shall be solely and entirely responsible for procuring all appropriate licenses and permits, which may be required by any competent authority for the SUBCONTRACTOR (S) to perform the subject work."

#### REGIONAL WATER PLANNING

If you have entered into a Regional Water Planning agreement with the TWDB, you must include the previously listed clauses for **State Auditor**, **Financial Records**, **No Debt Against The State**, **Licenses**, **Permit and Insurance** in your subcontracts – and the following requirements:

**OWNERSHIP** (substitutes for content listed on pages 2 and 3 of this document)

"It is agreed that all reports, drafts of reports, or other material, data, drawings, computer programs and codes associated with this contract and developed by the (Name of SUBCONTRACTOR) pursuant to this contract shall become the joint property of the REGIONAL WATER PLANNING GROUP, (Name of SUBCONTRACTOR), (Name of SUBSUBCONTRACTOR), and the Texas Water Development Board. These materials shall not be copyrighted or patented by the (Name of SUBCONTRACTOR). (Name of SUBCONTRACTOR) agrees that neither the Regional Water Planning Group nor the Texas Water Development Board are parties to this contract and agrees that that these entities have no liability under the terms of this contract. The Texas Water Development Board is solely a third-party beneficiary under this contract."

#### COMPLIANCE WITH BOARD RULES AND STATE LAW

The SUB-CONTRACTOR (S) shall comply with BOARD rules and adhere to all requirements in state law pertaining to the procurement of professional services.

#### **Questions?**

If you have any questions regarding these requirements, please send an email to <u>contracts@twdb.texas.gov</u>.

Updated: 2/19/2013 Page 4 of 4

# SPECIAL PROVISIONS REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS B191022, FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE HOME ELEVATION AND MITIGATION RECONSTRUCTION SERVICES

## **EXHIBIT C**:

**DSHS Standard Terms and Conditions** 

The FY 2016 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions apply to all new Federal financial assistance awards funded in FY 2016. The terms and conditions of DHS financial assistance awards flow down to subrecipients, unless a particular award term or condition specifically indicates otherwise.

#### Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements

DHS financial assistance recipients must complete either the OMB Standard Form <u>424B Assurances – Non-Construction Programs</u>, or OMB Standard Form <u>424D Assurances – Construction Programs</u> as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not be applicable to your program, and the DHS financial assistance office may require applicants to certify additional assurances. Applicants are required to fill out the assurances applicable to their program as instructed by the awarding agency. Please contact the financial assistance office if you have any questions.

DHS financial assistance recipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at <u>2 C.F.R. Part 200</u>, and adopted by DHS at <u>2 C.F.R. Part 3002</u>.

#### **DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances**

All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff.

- 1. Recipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance investigations conducted by DHS.
- 2. Recipients must give DHS access to, and the right to examine and copy, records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the award and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program guidance.
- 3. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports.
- 4. Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.
- 5. If, during the past three years, the recipient has been accused of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status, the recipient must provide a list of all such proceedings, pending or completed, including outcome and copies of settlement agreements to the DHS financial assistance office and the DHS Office of Civil Rights and Civil Liberties (CRCL) by e-mail at <a href="mailto:crcl@hq.dhs.gov">crcl@hq.dhs.gov</a> or by mail at U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 Washington, D.C. 20528.
- 6. In the event any court or administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination on grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against the recipient, or the recipient settles a case or matter alleging such discrimination, recipients must forward a copy of the complaint and findings to the DHS financial assistance office and the CRCL office by e-mail or mail at the addresses listed above.

The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.

Acknowledgment of Federal Funding from DHS

All recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

**Activities Conducted Abroad** 

All recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.

DHS Standard Terms & Conditions: Version 6.1

Age Discrimination Act of 1975

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the *Age Discrimination Act of 1975* (<u>Title 42 U.S. Code, § 6101 *et seq.*</u>), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Titles I, II, and III of the *Americans with Disabilities Act*, which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities. (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101–12213).

Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII)

DHS defines personally identifiable information (PII) as any information that permits the identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked or linkable to that individual. All recipients who collect PII are required to have a publically-available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of PII they collect. Award recipients may also find as a useful resource the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy template respectively.

Civil Rights Act of 1964 - Title VI

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the *Civil Rights Act of 1964* (42 U.S.C. § 2000d *et seg.*), which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations for the Act are found at <u>6 C.F. R.</u> Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

Civil Rights Act of 1968

All recipients must comply with <u>Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968</u>, which prohibits recipients from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (<u>42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.</u>), as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban Development at <u>24 C.F.R. Part 100</u>. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units—i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators)—be designed and constructed with certain accessible features (See <u>24 C.F.R. § 100.201</u>).

Copyright

All recipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of <u>17 U.S.C. §§ 401 or 402</u> and an acknowledgement of Government sponsorship (including award number) to any work first produced under Federal financial assistance awards.

Debarment and Suspension

All recipients are subject to the non-procurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Orders <u>12549</u> and <u>12689</u>, and <u>2 C.F.R. Part 180</u>. These regulations restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs or activities.

**Drug-Free Workplace Regulations** 

All recipients must comply with the *Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988* (41 U.S.C. § 701 et seg.), which requires all organizations receiving grants from any Federal agency agree to maintain a drug-free workplace. DHS has adopted the Act's implementing regulations at 2 C.F.R Part 3001.

**Duplication of Benefits** 

Any cost allocable to a particular Federal award provided for in <u>2 C.F.R. Part 200</u>, <u>Subpart E</u> may not be charged to other Federal awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed by Federal statutes, regulations, or terms and conditions of the Federal awards, or for other reasons. However, this prohibition would not preclude a recipient form shifting costs that are

allowable under two or more Federal awards in accordance with existing Federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) – Title IX

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seg.), which provide that no person in the United States will, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19

Energy Policy and Conservation Act

All recipients must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 6201 which contain policies relating to energy efficiency that are defined in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act.

False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies

All recipients must comply with the requirements of <u>31 U.S.C. § 3729</u>- 3733 which prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent claims for payment to the Federal Government. See <u>31 U.S.C. § 3801-3812</u> which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.

**Federal Debt Status** 

All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any Federal debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. See <a href="OMB Circular A-129">OMB Circular A-129</a>.

Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving

All recipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving as described in <u>E.O. 13513</u>, including conducting initiatives described in Section 3(a) of the Order when on official Government business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the federal government.

Fly America Act of 1974

All recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers: (air carriers holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. § 41102) for international air transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with the *International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974* (49 U.S.C. § 40118) and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the United States in the March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.

Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15 U.S.C. § 2225a, all recipients must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space funded in whole or in part with Federal funds complies with the fire prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 2225.

Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI)

All recipients must comply with the *Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964* (Title VI) prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national origin, which requires that recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services. For additional assistance and information regarding language access obligations, please refer to the DHS Recipient Guidance <a href="https://www.dhs.gov/guidance-published-help-department-supported-organizations-provide-meaningful-access-people-limited">https://www.dhs.gov/guidance-published-help-department-supported-organizations-provide-meaningful-access-people-limited</a> and additional resources on <a href="https://www.lep.gov">http://www.lep.gov</a>.

**Lobbying Prohibitions** 

All recipients must comply with <u>31 U.S.C. § 1352</u>, which provides that none of the funds provided under an award may be expended by the recipient to pay any person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any Federal action concerning the award or renewal.

National Environmental Policy Act

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the <u>National</u> <u>Environmental Policy Act</u> (NEPA) and the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA, which requires recipients to use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with other essential considerations of national policy, to create and maintain conditions under which people and nature can exist in productive harmony and fulfill the social, economic, and other needs of present and future generations of Americans.

Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social service programs administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, enabling those organizations to participate in providing important social services to beneficiaries. All recipients must comply with the equal treatment policies and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable statues, regulations, and guidance governing the participations of faith-based organizations in individual DHS programs.

Non-supplanting Requirement

All recipients who receive awards made under programs that prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that Federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non-Federal sources.

**Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements** 

All of the instructions, guidance, limitations, and other conditions set forth in the Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for this program are incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of your award. All recipients must comply with any such requirements set forth in the program NOFO.

Patents and Intellectual Property Rights

Unless otherwise provided by law, recipients are subject to the <u>Bayh-Dole Act</u>, <u>Pub. L. No. 96-517</u>, as amended, and codified in <u>35 U.S.C. § 200</u> et seq. All recipients are subject to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and disposition of rights to inventions and patents resulting from financial assistance awards located at <u>37 C.F.R. Part 401</u> and the standard patent rights clause located at <u>37 C.F.R. § 401.14</u>.

**Procurement of Recovered Materials** 

All recipients must comply with Section 6002 of the <u>Solid Waste Disposal Act</u>, as amended by the <u>Resource Conservation and Recovery Act</u>. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at <u>40 C.F.R. Part 247</u> that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition.

Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation

All recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award Term on Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation located at <u>2 C.F.R. Part 170</u>, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of your award.

**SAFECOM** 

All recipients who receive awards made under programs that provide emergency communication equipment and its related activities must comply with the <u>SAFECOM</u> Guidance for Emergency Communication Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable communications.

**Terrorist Financing** 

All recipients must comply with <u>E.O. 13224</u> and U.S. law that prohibit transactions with, and the provisions of resources and support to, individuals and organizations associated with terrorism. It is the legal responsibility of recipients to ensure compliance with the Order and laws.

Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the government-wide award term which implements Section 106(g) of the *Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000*, (TVPA) as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104). The award term is located at 2 CFR § 175.15, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of your award.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the *Rehabilitation Act of 1973*, 29 U.S.C. § 794, as amended, which provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance

If the total value of your currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from all Federal assistance office exceeds \$10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of this Federal award, you must comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of your award.

Universal Identifier and System of Award Management (SAM)

All recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award Term regarding the System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at <u>2 C.F.R. Part 25</u>, Appendix <u>A</u>, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of your award.

USA Patriot Act of 2001

All recipients must comply with requirements of the <u>Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act)</u>, which amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 175–175c.

Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

All recipients must obtain permission from their financial assistance office, prior to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials.

Whistleblower Protection Act

All recipients must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C. § 2409, 41 U.S.C. 4712, and 10 U.S.C. § 2324, 41 U.S.C. §§ 4304 and 4310.

## CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING (31 U.S.C.A. § 1352)

## This Certification must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Galveston County Purchasing Agent

Pı	rocurement Number and Description:	
R	FQ #B191011 Flood Mitigation Assistance Home Elevation and Mitigation Reconstruction Services	
Pr	roposer CERTIFIES, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:	
1.	No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the pany person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an age Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memb Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract loan, or cooperative agreement.	ncy, a er of Federal and the
2.	If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to an for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Mer Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congre connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the propo complete and submit <b>Standard Form LLL</b> , "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", i accordance with its instructions.	nber of ess in
3.	Proposer shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award defor all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under graloans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.	ocuments ants,
tra or fai	nis certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when ansaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person ils to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 transcription of the person of the penalty of the penalt	making n who
Nε	ame of Organization/Corporation:	
Αċ	ddress:	
Ci	ty: Zip Code:	
Sig	gnature of Authorized Date gnatory for Proposer: Signed:	

Title of Authorized Signatory of Proposer:\_\_\_\_\_

State of Texas	§
	§
County of Galveston	§

#### NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

Be firs	fore me, the undersigned notary, on this day pers st duly sworn, deposes and certifies that:	onally appeared		(Affiant), whom being		
	Affiant is the	of		that		
	Affiant is the  (Individual, Partner, Corporate County of the attached Qualification in RFQ Notes of the Affiant Reconstruction Services)	Officer) o. B191022, Flood Min	(Name of Qualif	fier) ome Elevation and		
•	Affiant is a duly authorized representative of Q	ualifier and is authorize	ed to make this Non-Co	ollusion Affidavit;		
•	The attached Qualification is genuine and is not	t a collusive or sham Q	ualification;			
•	The attached Qualification has been independently arrived at without collusion with any other qualifier, bidder, proposer, person, firm, competitor, or potential competitor;					
	Qualifier has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other qualifier, bidder, proposer, person, firm, competitor, or potential competitor, to submit a collusive or sham qualification or that such other qualifier, bidder, proposer, person, firm, competitor, or potential competitor shall refrain from qualifying;					
•	Qualifier has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other qualifier, bidder, proposer, person, firm, competitor, or potential competitor to fix the price or prices in the attached Qualification or of the qualification any other qualifier;					
•	Qualifier has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other qualifier bidder, proposer, person, firm, competitor, or potential competitor to fix the overhead, profit or cost element of the Qualification price or prices of any other qualifier, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against Galveston County or any person interested in the proposed contract;					
•	Affiant has not in any manner, directly or indire with any other qualifier, bidder, proposer, perso qualifier, bidder, proposer, person, firm, compet assistance in procuring or attempting to procure Qualification or the qualification of any other Q	on, firm, competitor, or justifier, or potential competential competential contract or in return a	potential competitor, p	aid or agreed to pay any othe		
•	Affiant certifies that Affiant is fully informed repenalties of perjury, certifies and affirms the truas well as to Affiant signing on its behalf.	egarding the accuracy of the of the statements her	f the statements containein, such penalties bei	ned herein, and under ng applicable to the Qualifier		
		Sig	nature of Affiant	***************************************		
SW	ORN TO and SUBSCRIBED before me this	day of		_, 2018.		
		Notary Public				
		My Commission Exp	ires:			



# County of Galveston Purchasing Department Vendor Qualification Packet

(rev. 1.4, September 28, 2017)

All interested parties seeking consideration for qualified vendor status with the County of Galveston should complete and return only the following forms to:

Galveston County Purchasing Department 722 Moody Avenue, (21st Street), 5<sup>th</sup> Floor Galveston, Texas 77550 (409) 770-5371 office (409) 621-7987 fax

PEID Form:

Person /Entity Information Data

W-9 Form:

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

(please note that the included form may not be the latest revised form issued by the Internal Revenue Service. Please check the IRS website at <a href="http://www.irs.govlpublirs-rdflfw9.pdf">http://www.irs.govlpublirs-rdflfw9.pdf</a> for the

latest revision of this form.)

CIQ Form:

**Conflict of Interest Questionnaire** 

(please note that the included form may not be the latest revised form issued by the State of

Texas Ethics Commission. Please check the Texas Ethics Commission website at

http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/conflict\_forms.htm for the latest revision of this form. Please note that Galveston County Purchasing Agent is not responsible for the filing of this form with the Galveston County Clerk per instructions of the State of Texas Ethics Commission).

**Debarment:** 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, PROPOSED DEBARMENT, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS & REQUIREMENT TO REGISTER IN SAM

Vendors/contractor certifies that neither it, nor any of its Principals, are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, disqualified, excluded, or in any way declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency. Vendor agrees that it shall refund Galveston County for any payments made to Contractor while ineligible. Vendor acknowledges that Contractor's uncured failure to perform under any agreement with the County of Galveston, if such should occur, may result in Contractor being debarred from performing additional work for the County, the respecting State Agency administering the grant funding the contract, if applicable, the State, FEMA or HUD (as applicable), and other Federal and State entities. Further, Vendor has executed the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Proposed Debarment, and Other Responsibility Matters and returned the fully completed and executed original certification with the submission of this Vendor Qualification Packet. The truthful and fully completed and executed original of the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Proposed Debarment, and Other Responsibility Matters must be included with the submission of this Vendor Qualification Packet and is a mandatory requirement to become a vendor of Galveston County. Vendor's failure to include the fully completed and executed original of this Certification shall be considered non-compliant with the requirements of this vendor qualification request and grounds for the rejection of vendor's request. Vendor shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Agent if it becomes debarred or suspended, placed on the Consolidated List of Debarred Contractors, or in any other way becomes ineligible for award of contract by any Federal agency. This Certification is a material fact relied upon by Galveston County; if it is later determined that the vendor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, in additional to the remedies available to Galveston County and the State agency administering a grant, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment of contractor. If the contract to be awarded pursuant to a Galveston County procurement effort involves the use of Federal funds, then vendor must also be registered in the Federal Contractor Registry through the System for Award Management (SAM) to be eligible for award of contract pursuant to the procurement.

Information regarding the SAM is available at:

http://www.federalcontractorregistry.com/?gclid=CIG1hf2rr8wCFYkCaQoducANZw or at https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1.

No contract involving the use of Federal funds may be awarded to any vendor unless and until such registration is current and in good standing under SAM. Successful vendors must maintain SAM registration throughout the entire term of any contractual agreement with the County. If a contract involves the use of Federal funds, then vendor must enclose proof of such SAM registration within its response, which is also a mandatory requirement of County procurement policy; failure to enclose such proof shall be considered non-compliant with the requirements of any procurement effort and grounds for the rejection of vendor's response to any procurement efforts (i.e., bid, proposal, or qualifications statement, as applicable).

Certificate(s) of Insurance: <u>If the person or entity seeking qualified vendor status with the County will be performing work at or on any County owned facility and/or property, Certificate(s) of Insurance are required to be submitted prior to performing any work.</u>

Insurance requirements are as follows:

#### Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance:

Successful vendor agrees to keep in full force and effect, a policy of public liability and property damage insurance issued by a casualty company authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and in standard form approved by the Board of Insurance Commissioners of the State of Texas, with coverage provisions insuring the public from any loss or damage that may arise to any person or property by reason of services rendered by vendor. Vendor shall at its own expense be required to carry the following minimum insurance coverages:

- 1. For damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of one person in anyone occurrence one hundred thousand and no/100 dollars (\$100,000.00);
- 2. For damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of two or more persons in anyone occurrence three hundred thousand and no/100 dollars (\$300,000.00); and
- 3. For injury to or destruction of property in anyone occurrence one hundred thousand and no/100 dollars (\$100,000.00).

This insurance shall be either on an occurrence basis or on a claims made basis. Provided however, that if the coverage is on a claims made basis, then the vendor shall be required to purchase, at the termination of this agreement, tail coverage for the County for the period of the County's relationship with the vendor under this agreement. Such coverage shall be in the amounts set forth in subparagraphs (1), (2), and (3) above.

#### Worker's Compensation Insurance:

Successful vendor shall also carry in full force Workers' Compensation Insurance policy(ies), if there is more than one employee, for all employees, including but not limited to full time, part time, and emergency employees employed by the vendor. Current insurance certificates certifying that such policies as specified above are in full force and effect shall be furnished by the vendor to the County.

The County of Galveston shall be named as additional insured on policies listed in subparagraphs above and shall be notified of any changes to the policy(ies) during the contractual period. Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a Best rating of no less than A. The vendor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance and original endorsements affecting coverage required by these insurance clauses. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The vendor shall be required to submit annual renewals for the term of any contractual agreement, purchase order or term contract, with Galveston County prior to expiration of any policy.

In addition to the remedies stated herein, the County has the right to pursue other remedies permitted by law or in equity.

The County agrees to provide vendor with reasonable and timely notice of any claim, demand, or cause of action made or brought against the County arising out of or related to utilization of the property. Vendor shall have the right to defend any such claim, demand, or cause of action at its sole cost and expense and within its sole and exclusive discretion. The County agrees not to compromise or settle any claim or cause of action arising out of or related to the utilization of the property without the prior written consent of the vendor.

In no event shall the County be liable for any damage to or destruction of any property belonging to the vendor unless specified in writing and agreed upon by both parties.

#### **Procurement Policy - Special Note:**

Understand that it is, according to Texas Local Government Code, Section 262.011, Purchasing Agents, subsections (d), (e), and (f), the sole responsibility of the Purchasing Agent to supervise all procurement transactions.

Therefore, be advised that all procurement transactions require proper authorization in the form of a Galveston County purchase order from the Purchasing Agent's office prior to commitment to deliver supplies, materials, equipment, including contracts for repair, service, and maintenance agreements. Any commitments made without proper authorization from the Purchasing Agent's office, pending Commissioners' Court approval, may become the sole responsibility of the individual making the commitment including the obligation of payment.

#### **Code of Ethics - Statement of Purchasing Policy:**

Public employment is a public trust. It is the policy of Galveston County to promote and balance the objective of protecting the County's integrity and the objective of facilitating the recruitment and retention of personnel needed by Galveston County. Such policy is implemented by prescribing essential standards of ethical conduct without creating unnecessary obstacles to entering public office.

Public employees must discharge their duties impartially so as to assure fair competitive access to governmental procurement by responsible contractors. Moreover, they should conduct themselves in such a manner as to foster public confidence in the integrity of the Galveston County procurement organization.

To achieve the purpose of these instructions, it is essential that those doing business with Galveston County also observe the ethical standards prescribed here.

General Ethical Standards: It shall be a breach of ethics to attempt to realize personal gain through public employment with Galveston County by any conduct inconsistent with the proper discharge of the employee's duties.

It shall be a breach of ethics to attempt to influence any public employee of Galveston County to breach the standards of ethical conduct set forth in this code.

It shall be a breach of ethics for any employee of Galveston County to participate directly or indirectly in procurement when the employee knows that:

- The employee or any member of the employee's immediate family has a financial interest pertaining to the procurement.
- A business or organization in which the employee, or any member of the employee's immediate family, has a financial interest pertaining to the procurement.
- Any other person, business or organization with which the employee or any member of the
  employee's immediate family is negotiating or has an arrangement concerning prospective
  employment is involved in the procurement.

Gratuities: It shall be a breach of ethics to offer, give or agree to give any employee of Galveston County, or for any employee or former employee of Galveston County to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation of any part of a program requirement or purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity in any program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal therefore pending before this government.

**Kickbacks:** It shall be a breach of ethics for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor for any contract for Galveston County, or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.

**Contract Clause:** The prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks prescribed above shall be conspicuously set forth in every contract and solicitation by Galveston County.

**Confidential Information:** It shall be a breach of ethics for any employee or former employee of Galveston County to knowingly use confidential information for actual or anticipated personal gain, or for the actual or anticipated gain of any person.

#### **Ouestions/Concerns:**

If you have any questions or concerns regarding the information or instructions contained within this packet, please contact any member of the Purchasing Department staff at (409) 770-5371.

#### CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE REPORTING

Proposer may be required under Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code to complete and file a conflict of interest questionnaire (CIQ Form). If so, the completed CIQ Form must be filed with the County Clerk of Galveston County, Texas.

If Proposer has an employment or other business relationship with an officer of Galveston County or with a family member of an officer of Galveston County that results in the officer or family member of the officer receiving taxable income that exceeds \$2,500.00 during the preceding 12-month period, then Proposer MUST complete a CIQ Form and file the original of the CIQ Form with the County Clerk of Galveston County.

If Proposer has given an officer of Galveston County or a family member of an officer of Galveston County one or more gifts with an aggregate value of more than \$250.00 during the preceding 12-months, then Proposer MUST complete a CIQ Form and file the original of the CIQ Form with the County Clerk of Galveston County.

The Galveston County Clerk has offices at the following locations:

Galveston County Clerk Galveston County Justice Center, Suite 2001 600 59th Street Galveston, Texas 77551

Galveston County Clerk North County Annex, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor 174 Calder Road League City, Texas 77573

Again, if Proposer is required to file a CIQ Form, the original completed form is filed with the Galveston County Clerk (not the Purchasing Agent).

For Proposer's convenience, a blank CIQ Form is enclosed with this proposal. Blank CIQ Forms may also be obtained by visiting the Galveston County Clerk's website and/or the Purchasing Agent's website - both of these web sites are linked to the Galveston County homepage, at <a href="http://www.co.galveston.tx.us">http://www.co.galveston.tx.us</a>.

As well, blank CIQ Forms may be obtained by visiting the Texas Ethics Commission website, specifically at <a href="http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/conflictforms.htm">http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/conflictforms.htm</a>.

Chapter 176 specifies deadlines for the filing of CIQ Forms (both initial filings and updated filings).

It is Proposer's sole responsibility to file a true and complete CIQ Form with the Galveston County Clerk if Proposer is required to file by the requirements of Chapter 176. Proposer is advised that it is an offense to fail to comply with the disclosure reporting requirements dictated under Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code.

If you have questions about compliance with Chapter 176, please consult your own legal counsel. Compliance is the individual responsibility of each person, business, and agent who is subject to Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code.



## COUNTY of GALVESTON

Purchasing Department
rev. 1.3, March 29, 2010

Request for Person-Entity Identification Data **FORM PEID:** 

Instructions: Please type or print clearly when completing sections 1 thru 4 and return completed form to:

Galveston County Purchasing Agent 722 Moody Avenue (21 st. Street), 5th Floor Galveston, Texas 77550 (409) 770-5371

pi	rodoc@co.galveston.tx.	.us		
Business Name:				
Attention Line:				
Physical Address:				
City:		State	e:	Zip+4:
Billing / Remit Address:				
City:		State	e:	Zip+4
Main Contact Person:  Main Phone Number:				
Fax Number:				
E-mail Address:				
A	reas below are for County	use only.		
Requested By:		Phone / Ext.	#	
Department:		Date:		
Action Requested - Check One		mber:		
( ) Add New	( ) Change Data	(	) Re-acti	
( ) Inactivate	( ) Employee		) Attorne	·
( ) Landlord	( ) Foster Parent	(	) Refund	
( ) OneTime	( ) Foster Child			

(Rev. December 2014) Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service

#### Request for Taxpayer **Identification Number and Certification**

Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

	4 1										
	1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.										
e 2.	2 E	2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above									
page	3 (	Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only <b>one</b> of the following seven boxes:		····	<u>-</u>	4 Evo	nntlan	. /			
Print or type See Specific Instructions on	☐ Individual/sole proprietor or ☐ C Corporation ☐ S Corporation ☐ Partnership ☐ Trust/estate						4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3):				
r ty ictic	☐ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) ▶						Exempt payee code (if any)				
Print or type Instruction	Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.					Exemption from FATCA reporting code (if any)					
<u> </u>		Other (see instructions) ▶				(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)				S.)	
pecif	5 <i>F</i>	ddress (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)	Request	er's na	me an	nd addi	ess (or	tiona	)		
<b>S</b>	<b>6</b> C	Sity, state, and ZIP code									
യ്			:								
	7 L	ist account number(s) here (optional)	<u></u>								
Par		Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)								******	
Enter y	our	TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to av	oid	Socia	l secu	ırity nı	mber				
reside	ntal	thholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, fi ien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other	ora [	T		7 [		7 1			
entities	s, It I	S your employer identification number (FIN). If you do not have a number, see How to go	t a			-	İ	-			
7//V on page 3.											
Note.	If the	e account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page on whose number to enter.	4 for	Empl	oyer ic	r identification number					
guiden	nes	on whose number to enter.			٦_		T				
Part		Certification									
		alties of perjury, I certify that:									
			_								
). IIIC	ilui	nber shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for	a numbe	er to b	e issu	ued to	me); a	and			
<ol> <li>I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and</li> </ol>											
		J.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and									
4. The	FAT	CA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting	g is corre	ect.							
Certifi becaus interes genera instruc	cationse ye t pa tly, p	on instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS the bulk have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transaid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to bayments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, is on page 3.	nat you a actions, i	re cur tem 2	does	not a	pply. I	or m	ortgag	е	-
Sign Here		Signature of U.S. person ►			***************************************			•			
	- 1	Da	ite 🕨								

#### General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. Information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov/fw9.

#### Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information An individual or entity (rotin was requester) who is required to file at a fill individual return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ATIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)
- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

Date ▶

Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you:

- 1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),
- 2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or
- 3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and
- 4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on page 2 for further information.

**Note.** If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

**Definition of a U.S. person.** For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

- · An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;
- A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;
- · An estate (other than a foreign estate); or
- A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States:

- In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;
- In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and
- In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause." Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

- The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.
- 2. The treaty article addressing the income.
- 3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.
- 4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.
- Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

#### Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

#### Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

- You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,
- You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details),

- 3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,
- 4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or
- 5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt payee code on page 3 and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more Information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships above.

#### What is FATCA reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

#### **Updating Your Information**

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

#### **Penalties**

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

#### Specific Instructions

#### Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

- If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.
- a. Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

- b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as" (DBA) name on line 2.
- c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.
- d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.
- e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a "disregarded entity." See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(iii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1, if the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, "Business name/disregarded entity name." If the owner of the disregarded entity is a foreign person, the owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

#### Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

#### Line 3

Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box in line 3.

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and enter "P" in the space provided. If the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and in the space provided enter "C" for C corporation or "S" for S corporation. If it is a single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the "Limited Liability Company" box; instead check the first box in line 3 "Individual/sole proprietor or single-member LLC."

#### Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.

#### Exempt payee code.

- Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding.
- Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.
- Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.
- Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

- 1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)
- 2-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
- 3-A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities
- $4\!-\!\text{A}$  foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities
  - 5-A corporation
- 6-A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession
- $7\!-\!A$  futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission
  - 8-A real estate investment trust
- 9-An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940
  - 10-A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)
  - 11—A financial institution
- 12—A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian
  - 13-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for	THEN the payment is exempt for
Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 7
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012.
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 4
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,000 <sup>1</sup>	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 5 <sup>2</sup>
Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

<sup>2</sup> However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with "Not Applicable" (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

- A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)
  - B-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
- $C\!-\!A$  state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities
- D-A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)
- E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)
- F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state
  - G-A real estate investment trust
- H—A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940
  - I-A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)
- J-A bank as defined in section 581
- K-A broker
- L-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1)
- M-A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

#### Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.

#### Line (

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

#### Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see *Limited Liability Company (LLC)* on this page), enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

#### Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

- 1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.
- 2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.
- 3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.
- 4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys (including payments to corporations).
- 5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

#### What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:
	Give name and SSN of:
Individual     Two or more individuals (joint account)	The individual The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account'
Custodian account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Act)	The minor <sup>2</sup>
The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee)     So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law	The grantor-trustee' The actual owner'
Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual	The owner <sup>3</sup>
Grantor trust filing under Optional     Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see     Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)     (A))	The grantor*
For this type of account:	Give name and EIN of:
Disregarded entity not owned by an individual	The owner
8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust	Legal entity
Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553	The corporation
<ol> <li>Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax- exempt organization</li> </ol>	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member LLC	The partnership
12. A broker or registered nominee	The broker or nominee
13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
14. Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i) (B))	The trust

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.

<sup>3</sup> You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.

<sup>4</sup> List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see Special rules for partnerships on page 2.
\*Note. Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

#### Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

- · Protect your SSN,
- · Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- · Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim Assistance.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to *phishing@irs.gov*. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at: *spam@uce.gov* or contact them at *www.ftc.govlidtheft* or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

#### **Privacy Act Notice**

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity	FORM CIQ			
This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 1491, 80th Leg., Regular Session.	OFFICE USE ONLY			
This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code by a person who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001 (1-a) with a local governmental entity and the person meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).	Date Received			
By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code.				
A person commits an offense if the person knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.				
Name of person who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.				
Chack this box if you are filling an undetentage in the control of				
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.				
(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes inco	gauthority not mplete or inaccurate.)			
Name of local government officer with whom filer has employment or business relationship.				
Name of Officer				
This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C & D) must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has an employment or other business relationship as defined by Section 176.001 (1-a), Local Government Code. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.				
A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from the filer of the questionnaire?				
Yes NO				
B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental entity?				
Yes NO				
C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?				
Yes NO				
D. Describe each employment or business relationship with the local government officer named in the	is section.			
Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity	Date			



## County of Galveston

# ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER INELGIBILITY

## Executive Orders 12549 & 12689 Certification, Debarment and Suspension

Solicitation Number: RFQ #B191022					
Solicitation Title: <u>Flood Mitigation Assistance Home Elevation And Mitigation Reconstruction</u> <u>Services</u>					
Contractor hereby CERTIFIES that:					
proposed for suspension, or declared ineligib	esently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment le under Executive Order 12549 or Executive Order t in any other way ineligible for participation in				
Contractor, and all of its principals, were not and have not been debarred, suspended, propose for debarment, proposed for suspension, or declared ineligible under Executive Order 12549 of Executive Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension, and were not and have not been in any of way ineligible for participation in Federal or State assistance programs at the time its' proposal was submitted in the procurement identified herein and at any time since submission of its' proposal;					
	o include, this certification in all contracts between with services performed under this contract; and				
	writing immediately, through written notification to contractor is not in compliance with Executive Order at with Galveston County.				
Contractor <b>Represents</b> and <b>Warrants</b> that the individe Certification on its behalf has the full power and auth hereto.	-				
Name of Business	Date				
By:					
Signature	Printed Name & Title				